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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/S8EREBHBR QA

Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 59, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 30 years of
experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 39, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 49, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and
has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong and China,
holding senior managerial positions. Mr. Cen has extensive
experience in dealership management, business formation and
marketing. He is responsible for market development of the
Group and overseas operations. He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 59, has been executive
director and is responsible for the overall operations since
August 2003 and in charge of various business projects in the
Group. Prior to joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’
experience in banking and management. He has been involved
in the financing and supervision of business projects in China
since the late 1980’s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 55, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over 20
years experience in the investment and real estate field, working
with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and China.
Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in charge of
the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas purchasing and liquefied
petroleum gas re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Wang Jian, aged 38, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s
Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wang
was engaged by a major bank in China and worked in its banking
business department. In November 2014, Mr. Wang obtained
a Doctor’'s Degree in Business Administration from School of
Business of Macau University of Science and Technology.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 66, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of Tou Rong Chang Fu
Group Limited, Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 59, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is graduated with
First Class Honours in mechanical engineering and the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 62, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in China, and has been
well connected in the finance and corporate sectors both in
China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise includes public listings,
project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring and merge
and acquisition. He has taken part in a considerable number
of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises and other major fund
raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 July, 2006 and an
independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 to the
shareholders.

The overall economy in Southern China underwent very steady
development in the year of 2017. During the year, we could not
see any strong demand in the market, but also did not see any
sign of economic recession. The energy market, however, was
prominently in an oversupply situation. The demand of traditional
energy products has already been softened for quite some time
because of extensive promotion of environmental protection and
energy conservation, and such imbalance between the supply
and demand was further intensified as a result of the emergence
of new energy.

In the year of 2017 where market competition was quite fierce,
the Group’s operating gross profits was severely affected, and
recorded a significant decline. Nonetheless, the substantial
appreciation of Renminbi during the year had gifted us with an
additional net exchange gain for the whole year, enabling the
Group to maintain an overall net profit which was comparable to
the HK$800 million profit level in the past few years.

For years, the Group has been concentrating its business in
the Southern China region. Capitalizing on the opportunities
created by the huge population, rapid economic growth and
flexible policies, we successfully established in the said region a
highly efficient logistics chain and an extensive end-users sales
network that considerably uplifted the Group’s profitability since
years ago. To maintain the profitability is in no way simple, and
it is even harder to achieve in an oversupply situation. In 2017,
with view to make up for the decline in profit, we adopted the
strategy of narrowing our profit margin to strike for significant
sales expansion. This strategy was not effective to the extent as
we expected, but it did give significant contribution to upkeep
the Group’s earning capability. In the long run, probably to follow
our country’s ‘Belt and Road Initiative’ is the best solution to the
existing problems. | strongly believe when we have new markets
in the overseas, we shall be able to effectively diversify our
operating risks and to continually improve our investment return
and profitability.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In 2017, | personally led the key management of the Group to
go beyond Hong Kong and the Mainland China to establish
the Group’s first overseas base in Singapore. The base in
Singapore primarily serves as a procurement centre that can
source oil products at a lower cost for the Hong Kong bunker
business. Meanwhile, it is also required to establish its foothold
in the bunker operation in Singapore. As part of the work to
further streamline our infrastructures combination, the Group
also entered into a memorandum with a local state-owned
enterprise for building an oil refinery in Malaysia. This oil refinery
is anticipated to be the driving force for the Group’s overseas
developments in the long run. It will enable a large part of the
Group’s oil business to be operated under self-sustained model
by efficiently providing quality products to our end-users sales
network, reducing their operating costs and enhancing their
competitiveness in the market.

| firmly believe, the status quo can only be changed by the power
of putting words into deeds, and turning ideas into actions for
realising a better future, which also was, is and will always be
the business philosophy that NewOcean firmly upholds.

Given that substantial capital is expected to be summoned for
implementing our overseas investments, the Board does not
recommend the declaration of final dividend for 2017.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

21 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

Market overview

The international crude oil market — In the first half of
2017, oil prices showed a relatively stable trend, lingering
between a narrow range from USD50 to USD55 per
barrel. However, dramatic changes had been observed
in the second half of the year. Since July, oil prices had
been experiencing a continuous rise from approximately
USD47.90 per barrel, hitting approximately USD66.80 per
barrel at the end of the year, representing an increment
of nearly 40%. Such price hikes had lasted for over six
months, and eventually broke through the level of USD70
per barrel at the end of January in 2018. Since then,
despite the fact that oil prices had dropped to USD63 per
barrel within a short time, such vigour brought by the rise in
prices had been very exhilarating to the market. At present,
the market believes that the fine balance between the
supply and demand of crude oil has basically recovered;
yet, the play between the oil-producing countries and the
United States in relation to cutting and boasting production
respectively still forms an important factor in affecting such
palance.

The consumer market of oil and gas in China - Thanks
to the effectiveness in structural reforms and the recovery
in prices, the two upstream sectors, namely mining and
refining, of the petrochemical industry in China had both
achieved phenomenal success in 2017. On the contrary,
only a mediocre performance had been made in the
downstream consumer market. The growth rate of gasoline
consumption slowed down drastically, with the such growth
dropping down to a mere 2.3%. Although the reduction
of diesel consumption had ceased and eventually turned
into a growth, such growth in the diesel consumption
was very insignificant at less than 1.5%. Due to the
continuous bloom in the passenger and freight volumes of
civil aircrafts, the demand for aviation fuel still achieved a
remarkable growth — such demand remained as high as an
8.7% increment despite signs of a gradual slowdown in the
year. On one hand, the demand for liquefied petroleum gas
(“LPG”) for civilian uses was relatively steady; on the other
hand, that for LPG for automobile uses had suffered from
a significant slump as a result of market structural changes
of the liquefied natural gas and taxi industry. The only field
which marked a significant improvement was industries
which employed LPG as their chemical raw materials.
Regardless of a depressing atmosphere in the traditional

i
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

market, the new application of LPG had contributed to
supporting the growth of the LPG demand, pushing up the
demand to stand high with an annual increment of 7.8%.
In 2017, our business of natural gas (“NG”) had enjoyed
its most fruitful season. With the substantial increase in
oil prices in the second half of the year, natural gas had
regained its competitive edge in terms of price, which had
led to a growth in its demand from weak to strong. The
four main sources of demand for industry gas, urban gas,
gas used for power generation and chemical gas all had
recorded growth with an expected increment of 17% on
average. It is expected that such growth momentum might
even extend to 2018.

The exchange rate of Renminbi - In the first half of
2017, the exchange rate of Renminbi against US dollar had
remained with a range from 6.87 to 6.92 for most of the
time. No pick-ups in such rate was seen until the second
half of May. The market closed at the then highest record
of 6.78 by mid year. The rate continued to climb, hitting
6.49 at the end of the year. At the beginning of February
in 2018, the exchange rate further rose to 6.25, marking
the highest point for the recent three years. The continued
appreciation of Renminbi had generally taken the market
by surprise. Undeniably, the appreciation in the value of
Renminbi was a delightful news to the importers as it
would allow them to enjoy their windfall profits in currency
translation in 2017. Nonetheless, the question of whether
Renminbi would depreciate again had deepened the market
concern because this tide of appreciation was not triggered
by the presence of any actual economic effectiveness after
all.

Performance overview

2.1 Basic situation

In 2017, the issue of overcapacity was still facing
the market in China. Under such an undesirable
operating environment, the Group’s end-user sales
network gave a full play of its competitive edge.
During the year, the Group had significantly expanded
the operating scale of its oil products business and
retained its LPG sales volume. However, given the
fierce competitions as well as the increase in costs
led by the up-climb in oil prices, the operating gross
profits of our energy products had been seen with a
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significant decline. The only fortunate news was the
appreciation in Renminbi during year 2017, which had
brought a substantial net exchange gain to the Group.
Such had also offset the negative impact on our
net profits as result of the decrease in gross profits,
which enabled the Group to remain its overall profits
on a level which was comparable to that of the last
few years.

During the year, with the increase in the sales volume
and prices, our revenue had increased rapidly, which
in turn led to a significant growth in the balances of
our receivables at the end of the year. In the field of
coping operating risks, the Group has owned years of
solid experience and has always been well-prepared
from the start. Prior to any sales of credits, the Group
would always conduct strict credit checking on all
of its clients, and amid the process, would always
perform prudent credit management measures.
Besides, the Group would also purchase credit
insurance or obtain effective security or collateral
for certain trade receivables, in order to ensure
the continuous expansion of its sales in a low-risk
environment.

Apart from the ongoing development of its energy
business in the Southern China region, the Group
had started to conceptualize the plan of expanding
its business to the overseas markets from 2016
and had also started its LPG wholesaling business
in Africa. In 2017, the Group quickened its pace
and first established its procurement center in
Singapore, which mainly assisted its marine bunkering
business in Hong Kong to diversify the sourcing
channels, reduce procurement costs, and explore the
Singapore market. When establishing such company
in Singapore, we decided to become a joint venture
partner with a scaled shipping company. The aim
was to accelerate our pace of market development
by leveraging on our partner’s business connections
in the local region. As expected, our company in
Singapore had succeeded in taping into the local
marine bunkering market within a few months, and
had obtained a wide recognition among the industry
with its professions.
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2.2

In order to better the industry chain of its energy
business, the Group began to approach and
negotiate with the Malaysian government since
the mid 2017 to express its interest in building a
refinery in Malaysia. After some efforts, the Group
had successfully entered into a memorandum with
a related governmental organization. At present, the
Group is actively applying for governmental approvals
of all kinds, and is conducting an in-depth study in
relation to the architecture and production allocation
of the refinery. It is also seeking for the most suitable
refinery around the world to supply crude oil for the
use of production.

In 2017, the Group was determined to conduct
adjustments on its operating strategies. It had also
planned to step onto the international stage with its
solid foundation laid in China, in order to maximize its
market opportunities and diversify its operating risks.
When moving forward, we will gradually better our
industry chain. In a long run, we aim to achieve self-
sufficiency in most of the aspects and avoid the plight
of relying on a single market or sourcing channel. We
also aim to better manage our business growth and
reduce our overall operating costs to the greatest
extent.

Operating income, net profit and basic earnings
per share

During the year, the Group had achieved a total
revenue of approximately HK$22,058,618,000
(among which, the revenue of energy products
was approximately HK$21,469,496,000),
contributing around 97.33% of the total revenue),
representing an increase of approximately
40.50% as compared with the total revenue of
approximately HK$15,700,406,000 (among which,
the revenue of energy products was approximately
HK$15,498,676,000, contributing around 98.72%
of the total revenue in the year) in the same period
of last year. During this period, the sales volumes of
energy products had increased more than 1 million
tons as compared with that of the same period of last
year. Additionally, the prices of energy products had
also recorded a considerable growth in the second
half of the year, together with the improvements

2.2
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in the sales of the electronics business during this
year, altogether contributing to a relatively prominent
growth in our revenue.

During this year, the Group recorded a net profit of
approximately HK$824,803,000, representing an
increase of approximately 9.95% as compared with
the net profit of approximately HK$750,160,000 in
last year. Gross profits were decreased by around
HK$132,514,000 during this year; however, our net
profits had grown by approximately HK$74,643,000,
which could be mainly due to the followings: (1) a net
exchange gain of approximately HK$137,070,000
was recorded in 2017; comparing such with the net
exchange loss of approximately HK$154,098,000
in last year, only the account for such exchange
difference in these two years had accounted for an
increment of more than HK$290 million, which had
been far enough to offset the decrease in our gross
profits; (2) as to one of the LPG auto-gas refueling
stations of our Group, the government had to gain
repossession of such land parcel for constructing
railways during this year, thus the lease of that parcel
had been terminated and the infrastructure erected
on that parcel had been demolished. In relation to
this, the government had made a compensation of
approximately RMB58 million. Such compensation
had been accounted as other gains in the first half
of 2017, that was an item of additional gain in the
first half of the year. The two above-mentioned non-
recurring gains had already fully explained the growth
instead of the decline in our net profit during the year.

In 2017, the Group did not engage in any fund
raising activities in relation to shares; however,
several repurchasing of shares had been conducted
in the year. Therefore, for the twelve months ended
31 December 2017, the weighted average number
of the Company’s issued ordinary shares was
1,475,426,704 shares, representing a decrease
of 4,971,512 shares as compared with the
1,480,398,216 shares for the twelve months ended 31
December 2016. During the year, the basic earnings
per share were approximately HK$0.57, representing
an increase of around 11.76% over the basic earnings
per share of approximately HK$0.51 in last year.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

Gross profits

During this year, the total gross profits were
approximately HK$1,624,363,000, representing a
decline of approximately 7.54% as compared with the
total gross profits of approximately HK$1,756,877,000
in the same period of last year. Despite the ongoing
bloom in oil prices in the second half of the vyear,
the fierce competitions in the market had not been
relieved. Also, the sale prices failed to be rapidly lifted
hand-in-hand with the growth in procurement costs,
resulting into a decline in our gross profits. At the
same time, the gross margin decreased to a merely
amount of approximately 7.36% during this period,
comparing to approximately 11.19% in last year.

Net exchange gain and loss

Thanks to the drastic upturn in the exchange rate of
Renminbi against the US dollars during this year, as
of 31 December 2017, the Group had recorded a net
exchange gain of approximately HK$137,070,000,
comparing to its recorded net exchange loss of
approximately HK$154,098,000 in last year. Despite
the fact that the majority of these exchange gains
were unrealized gains which did not substantially help
with the Group’s cash flow, they had relieved the
impact posed on our net profit resulting from the cut
in our gross profits.

Finance costs

During the year, due to the large volumes of
purchases and inventories of oil products, our
receivables had achieved a relatively larger increment,
resulting into the needs to utilize a substantial sum
of bank borrowings to meet with the needs induced
by the increase in liquidity. The finance costs used
in this aspect had then increased to approximately
HK$187,751,000, representing an increment of
approximately 14.73% as compared with the similar
finance costs of approximately HK$163,641,000 used
in last year.

2.3
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2.6

2.7

Net current assets

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had its
net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$3,990,706,000 and its current ratio of
167.91%, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$273,405,000 as compared with the net current
assets of approximately HK$4,264,111,000 (current
ratio: 199.95%) as of 31 December 2016. Despite the
decline in the current ratio, the liquidity of the Group’s
short-termed assets still remained on a considerably
secured level as a whole.

Fixed assets and investment

In 2017, the Group had invested approximately
HK$470 million into the construction project of its
headquarter located in Zhuhai. Such increment in
investments had already been reflected in the items
of ‘construction in progress’ and ‘properties under
development held for sale’. The headquarter in
Zhuhai is composed by five buildings; among which,
four had already had their roof capped and are now
undergoing interior renovation. The Group expected
that the completion of the Zhuhai headquarter will be
around the fourth quarter of 2018, and the sales and
leasing business will then begin.

During the year, the Group had purchased five
oil vessels in Hong Kong, which were mainly for
developing the oil products business and reducing its
expenses on renting vessels.

As to investments, the charcoals project acquired in
late 2016 had started its trial production and made
some adjustments on its production equipment since
the fourth quarter in 2017. Therefore, no substantial
sales or contributions of its revenue and profits had
been made in 2017. The management expected that
a full-scale production will begin in the second half of
2018.

Due to the fact that NG market in the Guangdong
Province had yet to mature, the Group had only
invested an insignificant amount of resources
into planning and laying the sales network in the
Guangdong Province.

2.6

2.7
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2.8

2.9

In order to develop the oil products business in
Hong Kong, an acquisition with consideration of
HK$80,000,000 had been completed at the end of
2017, in which the Group had acquired 51% of the
shares of the three companies which engaged into
auto-gas trading and oil products transportation in
Hong Kong (referred as ‘the oil companies’), and thus
became the controlling party. Such acquisition had
allowed the Group to expand its business from marine
bunkering to bunkering on land. The oil companies
owned 17 oil trucks and were the primary agent of
the four major oil companies. A goodwill amounting
to approximately HK$96,545,000 was created due to
the synergy of the acquisition.

Gearing ratio

As of 31 December 2017, the total balance of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings was
approximately HK$5,347,386,000. Meanwhile,
our bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash balances were amounted to approximately
HK$2,042,802,000. The equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately
HK$6,915,350,000. As calculated from the above,
the percentage of the net bank borrowings to the
equity attributable to the owners (i.e. the gearing ratio)
was around 47.79%, which was higher than that of
approximately 39.66% in last year. During the year,
our revenue increased significantly, which required a
huge sum of short-termed bank borrowings in order
to meet the needs of the increased liquidity, resulting
that the gearing ratio of the Group had increased
correspondently.

Net cash flow incurred by the operating activities

As of 31 December 2017, a relatively high number of
inventories (mainly oil products) had been recorded
in the account. The sales volume and prices of oil
products both increased in a relatively greater extent,
resulting into the surge in our trade receivables.
With the significant drop in the balance of trade
payables and bills payables, a net cash outflow
of approximately HK$394,443,000 had therefore
been incurred by the operating activities during this
year (last year: a net cash inflow of approximately
HK$903,761,000).

2.8

2.9
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3. Performance review 3. ¥XiROE
3.1 Segment performance 3.1 RHEERE

In 2017, the LPG business, oil product business, 2017 F » LB LPGET - H &
electronics business and other businesses of ¥ BTEBREMERHET
the Group had achieved an operating income IH T & A #4922,058,618,000
of approximately HK$22,058,618,000 in total, B EEHEFEERALD
representing an increase of around 40.50% as 15,700,406,0007% T+ & N 7
compared with the operating income of approximately 40.50% ° It —TEEKEEREAOLL
HK$15,700,406,000 in last year. The proportions of p=2%

the revenue brought by the three businesses were:

LPG (HK$°000) Oil products (HK$’000) Electronics (HK$’000)
LPG (F#iT) MG (FAET) EF(F#E)
2017 7,991,909 36.23% 13,477,587 61.10% 589,122 2.67%
2016 6,809,662 43.37% 8,689,014 55.34% 201,730 1.29%
During the year, the three businesses had achieved a FRN B _BEBADMBY
total gross profit of approximately HK$1,624,363,000 1,624,363,000/8 TLEV A EH] + H
and their respective contribution to the total gross HEBEBBRENNERD AR -

profits of the Group was:

LPG (HK$’000) Oil products (HK$°000) Electronics (HK$’000)

LPG (F#iT) hE(FET) BF(F#ET)

2017 984,392 60.60% 592,966 36.50% 47,005 2.90%
2016 1,317,194 74.97% 429,537 24.45% 10,146 0.58%
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3.2 RFERE®

3.2 Energy products business

Increase

First half Second half Full year Full year  (decrease)

of 2017
20176
L$E
Sales volume of LPG intons  LPG$HE& 2 ()
(percentage contributed to (EBHEHE
the total sales volume of M%) 885,000
the period) (32.56%)
Sales volume of oil products  JHmAEEEE (1)
in tons (percentage (hEHBEE
contributed to the total M%)
sales volume of the 1,833,000
period) (67.44%)
Total sales volume in tons BHEEE (M) 2,718,000
(100.00%)

In 2017, the Group had achieved a sales of
energy products of approximately 6,248,000 tons,
representing a growth of 20.38% as compared with
the sales volume of approximately 5,190,100 tons in
the same period of last year; among with, the sales
volumes of LPG and oil products were approximately
1,893,000 tons and approximately 4,355,000 tons
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately
1.05% and an increase of approximately 32.90% as
compared with those in last year respectively.

3.2.1 LPG business

In the past few years, the emerge of new energies
indeed fettered the development of traditional clean
energies such as LPG in a long run. Fortunately, the
Group had already established and owned a fairly
comprehensive sales network, which enabled it to
continue to capture a larger market share. In 2017,
the LPG sales volume of the Group was amounted
to approximately 1,893,000 tons, representing a
mere decrease of approximately 20,100 tons or
a decrement of approximately 1.05%, which was
comparable to the sales volume of approximately
1,913,100 tons in last year. It can then be seen that
the impact was insignificant.

of 2017
20174
THE

2017 2016 1%
20175 2016 F
2 2

BB, %

1,008,000 1,893,000 1,913,100 (20,100)
(28.56%) (30.30%) (36.86%) (1.05%)
2,522,000 4,355,000 3,277,000 1,078,000
(71.44%) (69.70%) (63.14%) 32.90%
3,530,000 6,248,000 5,190,100 1,057,900
(100.00%)  (100.00%)  (100.00%) 20.38%
= R20174% € K T #
6,248,000 1A 82 7 2= m HY 85 & -
Lt % & 4 [A] HA 495,190,100 W& &)
HESE B RK20.838% HFLPG
B 84 & 2 49 A&1,893,00018 -
o B 88 &5 = 49 & 4,355,000
L EXFHEEE  LPGRE D
T #11.05% + han A K& EFH 4
32.90% °
3.2.1LPG¥%

BEBF HERMUERL  BE
EWRTIPGEEBS R B RER
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BENEERBEANMBMHE -
2017 - £EEHIPGHHEEE B
K #91,893,0000F - B £ F %
1,913,100 BB SH E 2 R T -
R T #920,100H8 - 18 12 A
#1.05% * RREEWLTEE -




Annual Report 2017 ZZ—tFFH{ | 19

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

Throughout the year, the LPG business recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$7,991,909,000,
representing an increase of approximately 17.36%
as compared with the revenue of approximately
HK$6,809,662,000 in last year. Due to the
comparable figures of the sales volumes of this year
and last year, the increase in our operating income
was mainly the result of the rise in prices.

Because of the up-climb in average costs together
with the unusual and fierce price competitions, the
gross profits achieved during this year were only
approximately HK$984,392,000, representing a
shrinkage of approximately 25.27% as compared with
the gross profit of approximately HK$1,317,194,000
in last year. During this year, the gross margin of the
LPG business was around 12.32%, representing a
decrease of approximately 7.02% as compared with
the gross margin of 19.34% in last year.

Procurement

In 2017, the Group procured a volume of
approximately 1,054,900 tons of goods from
overseas, representing a decrease of approximately
4.42% as compared with the approximately 1,103,700
tons in last year. The goods procured from the
refineries in China were amounted to approximately
838,100 tons, representing a growth of approximately
3.55% as compared with the approximately
809,400 tons in last year. During this year, the total
procurement of LPG was approximately 1,893,000
tons, representing a decrease of around 1.05% as
compared with around 1,913,000 tons in last year.

LPGE % & F & B &
7,991,909,000 8 TR & 5 » Lt
4 2= 4 [ #1 49 6,809,662,000 75 7T
M 25 - I T 417.36% ° A
RAFHESRMBEEFHTF - &
ERAWEMESZ BE®R EFART
@( o

MR AR LEF - I EERRS
BEEZ - FTAFREROERE
B #9984,392, 0008 T A A - th#
EEEF41,317,194,00078 7T
T T #25.27% ° LPGEBKF R
REFEE12.32% @ thEFE
FIE19.834% L T 47.02% °

27 4

COITFEBREBINEBENE S
49 51,054,900M8 + Lt ¥ K F 4
1,103,700 « &2 T #94.42% o
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Sales

In 2017, the total sales volume of LPG was
approximately 1,893,000 tons, which was comparable
to around 1,913,100 tons in 2016.

#HE

2017FLPGR B HE E 4L A
1,893,000 « b ¥20164F %)
1,913,100MF = KEUIEF

Increase
First half Second half Full year Full year (decrease)
Sales category of 2017 of 2017 2017 2016
HERR NTELEE MTETEE NTERE N6ERE
Overseas customers BIEF 26,300tons 186,900tons W 423,200tons M 472,800 fons I (10.49%)
Volumes of deliveries conducted overseas HIiyEE 94,300 tons & 45200tons B 139500 tons B 232,700 fons 4 40.05%)
Volumes of re-exported goods gings 142000tons & 141,700tons & 283,700tons B 240,100 tons ¥ 18.16%
Industrial customers T%EP 350,000tons B 350,000tons B 700,000tons® 747,000 ons (6.29%)
Other terminals and botiing plants EHERRANE 12200tons M 254100tons  326,300tons B 226,500 tons 14.06%
Bottled LPG HELPG 149500tons I 146,000tons i 295500tons M 297,300 tons I (0.61%)
Auto-gas refueing RENE 77,000 tons i 7,000tons i 148,000tons B 169,500 tons I (12.68%|
Total iy 885,000 tons 1,008,000 tons i 1,893,000 tons W 1,918,100 ton 12 (1.0%)

As seen from the above statistics, almost all sales
categories in China had experienced declines to a
different extent during the year. Such was closely
related to the underperformance of the market and
the booming in prices. As there were not many
plants located in the Southern China region, which
used LPG as their chemical raw materials, such
phenomenon had not created any encouragement for
these industrial customers to demand the use of LPG.
On one hand, the shrinkage in the volume of auto-
gas refueling was relatively serious. In Guangzhou,
the LPG auto-gas refueling market was targeted at
buses and taxis as its core sales targets. Because
of the government policy, parts of the buses had to
switch to the use of liquefied natural gas, resulting
into the reduction in the number of LPG buses, which
in turn led to the diminishing demand for automotive
LPG of buses. On the other hand, the taxi industry
was prone to serious under-utilisation as affected
by the improper on-line car hiring services. In the
circumstance that the demand for LPG from buses
and taxies both declined due to different grounds,
the shrinkage in the business of auto-gas refueling
had then become unavoidable. During this period,

fLmsiEn R - ZFREEER
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ERBEINBER - ErHERE
FALPGHERIEIFEMO IHREE
W% S TERFHTRE
ATEBEER - AEMRERHR
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the business of bottled LPG had recorded a slight
decline, however it was comparable to that of the
same period of last year. The main reason for such
was the continuous up-climb of the LPG prices in the
second half of the year, which worsened the prices
differences between LPG and NG, resulting into a
shift of use from LPG to NG by some customers who
had a high price sensitivity. Despite of the undesirable
market situation, the distribution network established
by the Group in the Southern China region throughout
these years had played its important role, which was
to act as a bridge between oil refineries and bottling
plants, and facilitate a large sum of transactions.
As a result, the sales volume of such business had
recorded a substantial increase of over 40%.

3.2.2 0il products business

During the year, the Group achieved a total sales
volume of around 4,355,000 tons of oil products,
representing an increase of approximately 32.90% as
compared with approximately 3,277,000 tons in last
year.

The oil products business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$13,477,587,000, representing a
hike of around 55.11% as compared with the revenue
of around HK$8,689,014,000 in last year. Due to the
price rebound in oil products, the revenue grew more
than 50% despite of the growth of around 32.90% in
the sales volume.

The revenue grew 55.11%, however, by case of
the rise in costs and fierce market competitions,
the actual increase in our gross profits was
only amounted to approximately 38.05% (2017:
approximately HK$592,966,000; 2016: approximately
HK$429,537,000). The gross margin of the oil
products business slightly decreased from around
4.94% in last year to around 4.40% in 2017.
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Procurement

During the year, the Group procured oil products of
approximately 4,355,000 tons in total, representing
an increase of around 32.90% as compared
with approximately 3,277,000 tons in last year;
among which, the volume procured outside China
(including Hong Kong, Singapore and etc.) was
approximately 2,094,000 tons, representing an
increase of approximately 578,800 tons (an increment
of approximately 38.20%) as compared with
approximately 1,515,200 tons in last year. The volume
of procurement conducted in the Mainland China
was approximately 2,261,000 tons, representing
an increase of around 499,200 tons (an increment
of approximately 28.33%) as compared with
approximately 1,761,800 tons in last year.

g

S B F AR B M £ 4,355,000
WA - Bk F 493,277,000 1A
Lo s AN T 49382.90% - H &1
FREINBEESE  MEE)
EAITHE M2 4 52,094,000
WE - b ¥ K F 491,515,200 0 ¢
A1 T 49578,800MF A& A (1% g
4 £538.20%) - 1E B N # 17 K
B HE 4 A2,261,0000 - th &
£ 4F #91,761,800W8 - 12 40 T K
#7499,200M8 £ A (3% 18 #0 &
28.33%) °

Sales HE

First half Second half Full year Full year Increase

Region of sales of 2017 of 2017 2017 2016 (decrease)%
BEHE MTELRE  0ITETHE NITERE N1652F 180R) %
Hong Kong E 1 906,600 tons i 1,068,700 tons W 1,975,300 tons i 1,515,200 tons 30.37%
Waring bunkering B 366,600 tons & 417,000tons & 783,600 tons B 846,300 tons & (7.63%)
Off prodlucts/ chemical products tradng 4/ TEERES 540,000 tons & 651,700 tons A 1,191,700 fons & 666,900 tons & 78.69%
Singapore Himi OtonsB§  118,700tons 8§ 118,700 tons I 0 tons g Newly-added
Maring bunkering b:dv)/] business, not
applicable

Otons & 118,700 tons & 118,700 tons & Otons 4 ¥P4%% - TEE

China FE 926,400 tons B 1,334,600 tonsB§ 2,261,000 tons 1,761,800 tons 1 28.33%
Ol products - sales at sea i - ELHE 363,800 tons & 495,000tons A 858,800 tons B 714,800 tons & 20.15%
Ol products - sales on land g - ELEE 105,900 tons & 104,200 tons #f 210,100 tons & 240,100 tons 4 (12.49%)
O proclucts/ chemical products trading /W TEERES 456,700 tons & 735,400 tons A 1,192,100 tons & 806,900 tons 47 47.74%
Total sales volume HUER 1,833,000 tons § 2,522,000 tons 4,355,000 tons 3,277,000 tons 1 32.90%
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During the year, the business volume of the marine
bunkering in Hong Kong had undergone a minor
reduction of 7.63% on a full-year basis; meanwhile,
black oil (i.e. bunker fuels) and red oil (i.e. marine
diesel) both experienced a modest decline. In the
second half of 2017, some ocean-going vessels
had switched to ship to Shanghai and Zhoushan
habours for refueling due to the suppliers in the
Mainland China raced to seize a share of the market
by deliberately lowering the price of black oil, which
in turn affected the demand for black oil in the Hong
Kong market. We believe that such situation will
still last for a period of time, which will bring extra
operating burdens for those small-scaled operators.
In this regards, ensuring the quality of our oil products
and services is the only practical strategy which will
help limiting the loss in our business volume. Besides,
the red oil market also faced a similar issue; under
the cut-throat price reductions made by individual
operators in Hong Kong, the sales volume of our red
oil had been weakened significantly in the first half of
the year, which, however, had been relieved in the
second half of the year. Meanwhile, the reduction
in our sales volume of the year had been minimized
due to our success in attracting a few major clients
to us in this period. With our success in recovering
quite a decent amount of losses in the second half of
the year, it is expected that our red oil will achieve a
breakthrough in terms of its sales volume next year,
along with the momentum of its recovery. As to the oil
products/ chemical products trading, the development
of sales would face less obstacles given the absence
of limitations in the individual markets. As a result, our
sales volume had leaped to approximately 1,191,700
tons, representing an increment of nearly 80% as
compared with approximately 666,900 tons in last
year.

In 2017, the marine bunkering business in Singapore
had only begun in November. Within only two
months, a sales volume of over 100,000 tons had
been achieved. With this rate of development, it
is possible that the sales volume achieved by our
company in Singapore next year may be comparable
to the current volume achieved by our company in
Hong Kong. All these have been a solid proof that

EREENENEFEFAM™BET
F#7.63% ' 2FFE - 2iHEM
FREM) MAR(EN I RLEH) &4
DERHER o 2017E T EE - X
DiRFMAASEARERZERAR
BRMEKKRIETS - TUEE £
S A OB N - T2
TEHRERBMEHER - KME
FEEBERESSLEE —BEHE -
LE—EREE A EE LA
BEERH# - mMERMIABERERSR
EKRIBHMRE @ EHREEHT
BERE - AUATMIS VBRI ERARE
R o BEMEREER A E
B8l - F EEFHESRMAH
HEEAR BT TEEF  BRE
FTéT4g - M9 pE7E AR S
HELL B RKOHER - FTAREIEE
NEER A H PR &K - AR TE
FRMBEEHRETPARES
Fr A EHAL M A5 2 R AR 4 JIB 2 B F
MEEMBREEENEE - 2R
e THERNES B8
BENTSZH BRI - FTALERSA
SMEEE  HEERRBAZY
1,191,700 + i X 4 %) 666,900
WEARLL @ BT\ AR -

FIMEE LA EBER LR
017THFE MM AA 2 EHHA - EER
I {E A A B FERK T 8 i 100,000 ME
MHEE - RREENERREH
B MM ARIBREMNHEEEAT
BEEBBERIAHEEEFT - BIA
BRARL FTINE A B ETR B R
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3.3

the establishment of our company in Singapore
would pose a significant positive impact to the
expansion of our marine bunkering business outside
China (including the two markets in Hong Kong and
Singapore).

During the year, our oil products business had
adopted a development model which is similar to
the one that is practiced in the Zhuhai LPG Terminal,
that is to make use of the infrastructures such as its
existing oil terminal and leased oil terminal to be the
distribution points in order to promote the wholesaling
business of shipping and automotive transportation. In
2017, the Group’s sales volume of oil products at sea
(including the business volume of direct bunkering to
ships) in the Mainland China had grown around 20%
as compared to last year; on the other hand, the sales
volume of our oil products on land had dropped due
to the fierce competitions. In a long run, we will focus
on developing our business at sea and limiting our on-
land business operations to a certain amount. During
the year, our oil products/ chemical products trading
continued to expedite with the sales volume reaching
approximately 1,192,100 tons during this year,
representing a significant growth of approximately
47.74% as compared with approximately 806,900
tons in last year.

Electronics business

During the year, our electronics business recorded
a total revenue of approximately HK$589,122,000,
representing a hike of approximately 192.03%
as compared with the revenue of approximately
HK$201,730,000 in last year. The gross profit
contribution of the electronics business was
approximately HK$47,005,000, representing a
leap of around 363.29% as compared to the gross
profit of approximately HK$10,146,000 in last year.
Additionally, the gross margin in this regards also
increased from 5.083% of last year, to approximately
7.98% this year. Although there was a relatively
large growth in our electronics business in 2017, the
proportion of the revenue or gross profit contribution
of the electronic business to our business as a whole
had not exceeded 3%, which in turn did not bring any
actual significant impact to our business as a whole.

3.3

BN BREB B IEMETS)
B8 L hh RS 2 E A R
% o

NHEREBEERRNTEKE
LPGHEsEMEREEREN - FIAEA
KR EENSEE - ER M ERESHR
MrEBSERM  HEIMEREER
HBEEE -2017FFAN > £EEE
BEARHEmE s (RIEEE
BE EIRERE) L EFRHE
EERNBRAKAIEE - EHmH
b FiHE SR AR T RRMA T
B e RIEME - HABIEERE
BORRATE LR - BEERMEBR
SHT—TEHNEE - TR BRS
{ETHERNE SEENRETT
BRI 85 & = 2 5 491,192,100
WA - bb ¥ 25 F 49 806,900 ME K i 1
IN#I47.74% o

BETFEH

ETEBFRNEHEBY
589,122,000/ JT B & ¥ %8 - Lt
% £ 4 £9201,730,0008 7T K &
¥% FF#192.03% ° BT %
7% 8 E I B B 4 & 47,005,000 78
JC - Bl E & E F £910,146,000
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4. Business outlook 4. EBE

In the past, the Group had been focusing on the sale of EEBEEEPEPRERMEET
energy products in the Southern China region of China; BERMERNEE  ME@mI5EAE
however, such market is currently undergoing oversupply BRI SKEARR - BF R &8
and fierce competitions, which altogether bring difficulties PREE o fBR SKE AR BE AL T 5
to business operations. Indeed, the issue of oversupply is NEEEHETREAME  RBEBEST
not a key problem for operators who have owned a huge EHBEER  B—REEZE 15
end-user market; these operators will have the advantage BAEAXRSEE  SKESHETE -
to stay in the market. Eventually, a balance between the WHEREEERENRBIH - TE - £F
demand and supply can be reached if these operators still FMSELAERNBRES - BFfEHE
manage to secure their market shares after some time, e RI-ENFE  ZEAR
and these operators would then enjoy reasonable return. B 36t 35 (E R e 3 S AT A - MR IR ge s
However, their profitability may inevitably be affected to a i B8 58 2 I [R Y T 35 2K LB 5 AR o

certain extent while awaiting for the market to adjust itself.
However, it is possible to avoid such risk, which is by
exploring more new markets and diversifying our risks.

For such, the Group had established its development BRARE  SER2017FELEHET
blueprint in 2017, that was to expand its business overseas BRAIMEROERER - HMSEE
in a proactive manner. We will continue to adopt the same RSB R AL R -
operating strategies, that is to push our developments ERERFRER - MR RMER
forward with our end-user markets so as to facilitate the BEBNEXEBLEEEN T =T
rapid growth in our business volume. Meanwhile, we are ETRNEFERYRE RELCEN
reviewing the Group’s industry structure and operating R E—BRELEHA o

model so as to continuously improve our industry chain,
together with our logistics chain. It is expected that such
measures will enhance our operating efficiency and further
lower our operating costs.

Oil products business — The developments of our oil HRER - hRESEINRERESK -
products business will be expedited.

(1) We are not only facilitating our cooperation with our (1) HETEEERNEEBHERER
partners in China to construct refueling stations at HEBOMERLRER MBI - 6
prime locations in the Guangdong Province, but also EZEENBEEHMERNERELAR
considering on establishing our sales networks of =) iceorat= ok s R==Fh7

automotive refueling stations by means of acquisition
and merging.
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(2) Other than laying gateways for operations in the
Mainland China, we also acquired the shareholdings
of three companies which engaged into auto-fuel
trading and oil products transportation in Hong
Kong in late 2017, which in turn allowed the Group
to become the primary agent of the four major oil
companies in Hong Kong and officially enter into the
auto-fuel market in Hong Kong.

(3) As to the marine bunkering business, since Hong
Kong or ports along the coastal lines of China are
not considered as embodying with any geographical
advantage, our foothold established in Singapore
indeed plays a very crucial role to improve our
marine bunkering business. Acting as a procurement
centre, our company in Singapore had already helped
lowering the procurement costs of fuel oil for marine
uses, and helped the Group to tap into the marine
bunkering market in Singapore.

(4)  We are currently planning to expand our marine
bunkering business to all of the ports in Malaysia;
meanwhile, our company in Singapore will provide
supply services of oil and technical support for these
new markets.

LPG business — The retail markets located in the Southern
China region of China (including Macau and Hong Kong)
will still be the core of our business.

(1)  We are currently exploring more opportunities to
develop more end-user markets for our bottled LPG.
Meanwhile, we will enhance our management towards
distributors and provide them with more supports
in order to improve our sales volume, so as our
profitability.

(2) As to the expansion of our business to the overseas
markets, we had begun to wholesale our LPG to
Africa two years ago. At present, we are seeking for
suitable land parcels in Africa for the construction of
LPG terminal gas plants and bottling plants. We aim
to tap into the local end-user markets as soon as
possible, which are expected to create us with decent
profits.

B T HEBEREREEPTRIN - ]
R2OVT7TFFEEETBRBETRSE
ERHES MhmER =M A FN
BRE - BREERATEONARA
Al —HETERER  YERXES
FENEBERRATS

ERELIENETR - BREBEEX
TENTEEOEEHRIE R G
B EMBRFES - PTAER IR
UHMBHENES LINAEBEE
T IRFRRAER - KA
ERRET L - CRAMMBBEE
fi R EEM BB AR - TRE KD
HITR T #INBIE LA™ o

BFVRAEERBNEE HRAE XA
B ORE EImER - MET IR A
AR & RE LTSI R mRE
Bk -

LPG¥H — NANUPEERDE (B
B REB)NZTEMSE AZL

(1)
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Improvement on our industry chain — Vertical integration
will be conducted.

(1) The Group is now pressing ahead with the
establishment of its refinery project in Malaysia. We
believe that a significant part of the Group’s annual
sales volume of oil and gas will be from the products
manufactured by the refineries after the completion
of the refineries. Thus, the oil and gas business of
the Group will be able to be self-sufficient in general,
instead of relying on the supply from other sources.

(2)  After the works of such vertical integration, the Group
will be able to achieve better costs management
under a low-risk phenomenon. Meanwhile, such will
also greatly enhance the Group’s bargaining power
on the international market, broaden its procurement
channels and promise more sales opportunities.

We are confident that a long-term growth in the sales of
the Group and improvements in our profitability can only
be achieved by the continuous expansion of our end-user
sales network in the Southern China region, the active
expansion of sales markets in the overseas markets, as
well as the vertical integration of our supply chain.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profit for the year be retained.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 5 June 2018. A notice convening the annual general
meeting will be published and dispatched to the shareholders in
due course in the manner required under the Listing Rules.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 31 May 2018 to Tuesday, 5 June 2018 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.
In order to qualify for attendance and voting at the annual
general meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
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the Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May
2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2017, apart from the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$253,611,000, the Group also pledged its oil
vessels with carrying value of approximately HK$148,262,000 to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 1,295 (2016:
1,275) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and
other regions in the PRC. The Group remunerated the employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
practice. Employee benefits provided by the Group include
a mandatory provident fund scheme and medical insurance
scheme.

AR ZBRODBEELIREENERHE
PRARE - it ABEABEFEFKNER183%E
Moot MEHEHEMN2018F5H30H
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to
reelection. The Company deviated from this provision in that
none of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed
term, instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
byelaws of the Company (these provisions are described in the
paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The board
of directors believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors (the “Board”)

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2017 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company. The
Board establishes the strategic direction for the development of
the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.
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With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2017:
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Number of Meetings

31

Name of director Attended
EEla HESERE
Executive Directors: HITESE:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (FE) 4/4
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFAMHE) 4/4
Cen Ziniu =74 4/4
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 4/4
Siu Ka Fai, Brian BRIB 4/4
Wang Jian FE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHTEE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR 89796 4/4
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRABIE 4/4
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEtIELT 4/4

During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate

FA- AAEEEEEHRIARAEHHH
BREH BEEENEREELREE - KE

governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.
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Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is

EREFEBRL2EARANEFTEEENE
Eggd REHARANEBLEBZHE
WREH  EWIELTAREZTGNARAH
REEMEBRNER - AR CHEIEBLE
SR RFEARHARANEHRATE
BELRET ARBINERIEZTRNFRE
HEI L8k WM

summarized as follows:

Type of Training

Name of director Attended

EENR HEE RIS

Executive Directors: HITESE:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) E D (ERE) A B

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLELHE) A B

Cen Ziniu T4 A, B

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR A B

Siu Ka Fai, Brian BRIE A B

Wang Jian FEX A, B

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony w95 A, B

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIESE A B

Dr. Xu Mingshe wEMEL A B

Notes: Bt -

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to A HEEMEESRERSTAA B LFIE
corporate governance law and practice W

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and B MEEAER N EBTENR L LB EHR
finance and on the industry generally 2B

Chairman and Managing Director TEREEHER

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
byelaws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
effectiveness of the internal audit function and the system of
internal control covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Through direct communication and meetings with the
management, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
reporting of the Company, including the Company’s interim and
annual reports, and the financial position of the Company as
disclosed in the financial reports, and it has also reviewed the
engagement of external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2017 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

° Financial reporting process and risk management functions;

° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system;

° Review of interim results and audited financial statements;

FREAY
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° Review and monitor of the internal audit function; and
o Based on the Group’s risk management function i.e policies
and procedures, formulate the scope of internal audit work

for 2017

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REXR HESFRRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict [ hB A& 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe matELT 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence == 2/2
Cen Ziniu =74 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEE®

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
nonexecutive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration

factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the FAN - FWNEE2LTRRTEETHRR
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed, B Ratam(H A Eﬁ)z’x BIAY B BOR &

BT - FNEESRFRABR202% - U

ERTREEBTEERSRITERAE ZF M
Ha -

among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.

REENFMEESELKEHBEREAT :

Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BEMR HEEERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZESEE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wali, Benedict BRIBAR 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wETIET 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.
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2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in the
year to review and discuss the structure, diversity, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and to assess the independence of independent
nonexecutive directors of the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers that all Board members possess the relevant skill and
knowledge in the area of the business operation of the Group.
The Nomination Committee also considers that an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on
the Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

Annual Report 2017 —ZZ—tFE#f
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BRERR HESERE
Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) BLW(ZEEFE) 2/2
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR 89796 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRNB AR 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEtIELT 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2E 2/2

Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and
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° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.
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The Board considered that throughout the year 2017, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.

Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
byelaws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.
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Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to ensure
all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website under the column of “Investor Relations”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 22/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered

ZBENEN &

FA- BN/ EBNTFARRARZEEEE o 7
BERGTEREITZERDT

Fees paid/payable

RS & Bt EER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services EE RS 3,500

Non-audit services IEE T ARG 840

Total A&t 4,340
Accountability and Audit HERERZH

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 55.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business, sales of electronic products and manufacturing and
distribution of charcoal.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 9
to 28 of the annual report under the heading “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. In summary, the Group’s revenue from
operations for the year was up by 40.50% reflecting the increase
in sales volume and the relatively higher price of energy products
compared with last year to approximately HK$22.06 billion. The
total sales volume of energy products increased by 20.38%
to approximately 6,248,000 tons. The gross profits decreased
by 7.54% to approximately HK$1,624 million with gross profit
margin decrease from 11.19% in 2016 to 7.36% in 2017. Despite
the drop in gross profit, the profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company from operations increased by 11.51%
to approximately HK$836 million mainly due to the net exchange
gain of approximately HK$137.07 million resulting from the
appreciation of RMB in year 2017. Whereas in year 2016, there
was a net exchange loss of approximately HK$154.10 million.
The basic earnings per share from operations increased by
11.76% to HK$0.57. The equity attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 18.07% to approximately HK$6,915
million.

There are a number of principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group as follows: (i) global economy is gloomy especially
China’s economy growth has slowed down in recent years; (ii)
the fluctuation of the oil and LPG price in the global market; (iii)
PRC government’s policies in promoting green energy such as
NG and electricity and; (iv) the substantial fluctuation in RMB
exchange rates. The above are not intended to be an exhaustive
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list of all principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group. These
may change over time as new risks and uncertainties emerge
and others cease to be of concern. Looking ahead, the global
economy will remain uncertain. However, as necessity goods,
the rigid demand for energy products will continue to exist, thus
LPG and oil products are still the core business for the Group.
In addition, pursuant to the existing PRC government policies,
the demand for NG and electricity is expected to grow in coming
years and the Group is now actively developing the retail network
of NG in Guangdong province and expending the sales network
for existing products in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Particular of the major suppliers and customers of the Group are
set out on pages 46 and 47 of the annual report. The Directors
are satisfied with the relationship with customers and suppliers.
The Directors recognize the importance of having good working
relationship with its staff as staff is the key assets to the Group.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff nor significant labour disputes or industrial actions. The
Group did not experience any significant staff turnover especially
for the management level. The Directors believe that the Group
has good working relationship with its staff as a whole. In
respect of corporate social responsibility, our target is to commit
to motivating the low-carbon growth of the industry, providing
green energy for the developing of the whole society and taking
into account the needs of our stakeholders, including impact
on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
The details of the above are set out in the Environmental Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2017
published on the Company’s website www.newoceanhk.com.

Save and except for one deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code as set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the details of the deviation are set out on page 29 of
the annual report), the Company has complied in all material
respects with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Results and Appropriation
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 62 and 63.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profits for the year be retained.
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Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 208 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately HK$6,006,000
(2016: HK$168,468,000) on property, plant and equipment
to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant. Details of the
movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, sale or redemption of securities

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
repurchased a total of 7,368,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at an aggregate purchase price of approximately
HK$17,347,000 (excluding transaction cost), such shares were
cancelled during the year, details are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors considered that,
as the Company’s ordinary shares were trading at a discount to
the net asset value per share, the repurchases would increase
the net asset value per share of the Company. None of the
Company’s subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s shares during the year.

Reserves of the Group and the Company

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”
on page 66 and page 67.
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The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

ARARI2017F 12 A1 BAl#H o)k TR =
MEEEDT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT BT

Contributed surplus AR 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings IREE & F 465,992 412,322
467,659 413,989

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would

oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 11% and
35% (2016: 12% and 36%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.
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The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 17% and 50%
(2016: 17% and 51%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$1,638,000.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
byelaws, Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, Mr. Cen Ziniu and Mr. Siu
Ka Fai, Brian, all are executive directors, shall retire by rotation
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All directors retiring at the annual general meeting
have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2017, the interests of certain directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company
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Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held Fr{iEE LT
Name of director Capacity B BTT ERTERK
EEns 17 BERBR R Bintk
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 63,340,358 4.30
= EnBEEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.32
AR B FRE (Wit 1)
554,119,638 37.62
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 57,623,558 3.91
258 EBEA
Other (Note 2) 73,616,892 5.00
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131,240,450 8.91
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.15
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Notes:

1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, and
were the same block of shares as referred to in note 1 in
the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders” below.
Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, 15%
by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr.
Shum Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by
Uniocean.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group,
none of the directors, chief executive nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2017.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or a connected entity of a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Connected Transaction

The Group had the following continuing connected transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2017:

On 18 December 2013, Sound Management Services Limited
(“Sound Management”) had entered into a first tenancy
agreement with Ever Lucky Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and wholly owned by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, for the
use of office premises owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on
23/F., The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period of
one year commencing on 1 January 2014 and expired on 31
December 2014 (both days inclusive). Since then, both parties
entered into several renewal tenancy agreements to extend the
lease of the office premises annually. On 19 December 2016,
Sound Management entered into a lease agreement with Ever
Lucky Limited, for renewal of the tenancy agreement at monthly
rental HK$398,000 for another one year commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (both days inclusive) For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of the
rental paid or payable to Ever Lucky Limited was HK$4,776,000.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the Group’s continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange. The independent non-
executive Directors confirm that the continuing connected
transaction has been entered into by the Group in the ordinary
and usual course of its business, on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing such transaction that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
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Substantial Shareholders EFERE

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders B2017F12 A31H  BEARRKEBES
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the REAERPIE 336 1K IREAR Y 2 FERRF
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the RMAR BREFTEEREFETHAERE
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief X E R THRBEAEG AT
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company HBERNNTIDBITRA RS RXE -

of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued share

ordinary capital of the

shares held company

Long/Short X QT Fr{EF 4T

Name of shareholder positions Capacity ERTEER ERTERF

RS Be #ke 513 &8Ae Bt

Uniocean Long Beneficial owner 490,779,280 33.32

i [S~) EmEAA

Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.32

=N S Riczm(Mat1)

Long Family interest (Note 2) 63,340,358 4.30
5= RictE= (it 2)
FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Long Interest of controlled corporation 75,706,000 5.14
(Note 3)
S RIEHIAEIER SR (H23)
Fullerton Fund Management  Long Investment manager (Note 3) 75,706,000 5.14
Company Ltd. /S52) WEKIB(WZ3)

Notes: Mt -

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held 1. ZERODEEINBEZTZEBS DML
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. BB RRIEREE 2 490,779,280 A ik
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the - (RIEERFETHAERRMD REHA
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in BEfn R 2 i | (@) BT RE1) » SR AR
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the AL TURGERFEER °
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

2. These represent the same block of 63,340,358 shares held 2. RERMHER/NBZTIEBSIETEE
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu %A 263,340,358 Kk HE(RIE S
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief REZTBRAERRKRO REBERG S 2 #
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and @) WHER AR NRAZ T AR GEERE

were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.
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3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd. as investment manager
is deemed to own a total of 75,706,000 shares through various
funds under its management. Fullerton Fund Management
Company Ltd.’s entire interest is indirectly owned by FFMC
Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 4 September 2015, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a syndication loan facility of US$170,000,000 for
the purpose of financing the general working capital requirements
of the Group and refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in five instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
12 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 18 months after
the date of first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 24 months after the date of
first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, and
the remaining 55% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 36 months after the date of the first drawdown.

On 25 August 2016, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$150,000,000 for the
purpose of refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group and financing the general working capital
requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in four instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which
falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the
utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months
after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 42 months after the date of

3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd.
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first drawdown, and the remaining 70% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 48 months after the date of the
first drawdown.

On 26 April 2017, Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
facility agreement for a revolving short term advance facility
up to HK$150,000,000 or the equivalent in other major foreign
currencies for financing the Group’s general working capital
requirements. The loan advance to be made to Sound Agents
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in six months and
the loan advance is subjected to revolve for another six months
upon each repayment date.

On 30 June 2017, the Company entered into a facility agreement
for a term loan of HK$190,000,000 for the purpose of refinancing
the Group’s existing indebtedness of any member of the Group.
The loan to be made to the Company will be repayable in four
instalments, 25% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 15 months after the date of first drawdown,
25% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
18 months after the date of first drawdown, 25% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 21 months after the
date of first drawdown, the remaining 25% is repayable on the
date which falls 24 months after the date of first drawdown.

Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2017 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 41.53% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 175, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Making another century of impact
BEHFE BAIHLT
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Key Audit Matters REEXFER
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
Impairment of goodwill

We identified the impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter due
to the involvement of significant
judgments, estimations and
assumptions in determining the
recoverable amounts. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$751,948,000 as
disclosed in notes 4 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill has been allocated to
individual cash-generating units
("CGUs") relating to the sales and
distribution of LPG and oil products.
Impairment of goodwill is assessed
by comparing the recoverable
amounts of CGUs to which the
goodwill is allocated with their
carrying values at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 December
2017, the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs have been determined
with reference to the value in use
of the relevant CGUs, which require
assumptions about suitable discount
rates, growth rates, budgeted
sales and gross margin in order to
calculate the present value of the
estimated future cash flows.

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the
impairment of goodwill included:

o Understanding the Group’s
impairment assessment
process, including the
impairment assessment model
used and key assumptions
used;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of the assumptions made
by the management by
comparing the historical
forecasts to the actual results;

J Testing the discount rates
applied in the forecasts by
comparing them to externally
available data;

o Challenging the growth rates
used by comparing against
historical data to assess the
reliability of the management’s
forecast; and
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

J Comparing the budgeted
sales and gross margin
against historical performance
and the directors’ strategic
plans in respect of each CGU.

Recoverability of trade debtors and allowance for bad and doubtful

debts

We identified the recoverability of
trade debtors and allowance for
bad and doubtful debts as a key
audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements and significant
management judgment and
estimation involved in determining
the appropriate level of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of the Group’s trade debtors
is HK$3,528,853,000 as disclosed in
note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements,
in assessing the recoverability of
the trade debtors, the management
considers the credit history including
default or delay in payments,
historical settlement records,
subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of trade debtors.

Our procedures in relation to
assessing the recoverability of trade
debtors and allowance for bad and
doubtful debts included:

o Testing, on a sampling basis,
the aging analysis for trade
debtors by checking to
supporting documentation
to assess the accuracy of
the data used to determine
allowances for bad and
doubtful debts;

J Testing, on a sampling basis,
the details of settlements
during the current year and
the subsequent settlements
to supporting documentation
including bank receipts; and

J Assessing the recoverability
of trade debtors and
reasonableness of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts by
considering the credit history
including default or delay in
payments, settlement records
and aging analysis of trade
debtors on a sampling basis.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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e Bm REM T ER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F 12 531 HILFEE
2017 2016
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FRET FET
Revenue WA 5 22,058,618 15,700,406
Cost of sales SHE RN (20,434,255) (13,943,529)
Gross profit EF 1,624,363 1,756,877
Other gains and losses HApr1s K EE 7 212,441 (122,258)
Other income Hiplg A 7 68,722 63,525
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RS HY W (508,548) (383,641)
Administrative expenses T H (346,530) (307,937)
Finance costs BhE R AN 8 (198,750) (180,087)
Share of profits of joint ventures "15/\**ﬁ¥/mﬂ 1,760 3,807
Share of losses of associates DG A A Bl E 1R (992) (945)
Profit before taxation R 5t B A 10 852,466 829,341
Taxation TIE 9 (27,663) (79,181)
Profit for the year F A A 824,803 750,160
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hfth 2 EUA (ZH)
ltem that will not be reclassified TEENLEIERE
to profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising A& B7|RE¥ES
on translation to presentation 2 BN 5
currency 243,721 (230,219)
ltems that may be reclassified BEfE Al se e BT D FE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEx AR -
Fair value gain on available for AHEERE 2 A FE
sale investment Fris - 35,617
Reclassified to profit or loss upon BEHE TR
the disposal of certain amount of HEREREN S
available for sale investment FBER = (12,874)
243,721 (207,476)
Total comprehensive income for FABEEEKE
the year 1,068,524 542,684
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 1231 HIEFE
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FEIT FET
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: {5 4E A% Al (E538) -
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE 2SN 835,631 749,397
Non-controlling interests FEFE | fe (10,828) 763
824,803 750,160
Total comprehensive income (expense) /G4 Z Uz (2 H) ¢
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N 1,075,552 543,814
Non-controlling interests FEFE | e (7,028) (1,130)
1,068,524 542,684

Basic earnings per share GREKREF 14 HK$0.57 HK$0.51
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re SRR

At 31 December 2017

R2017% 12 A31 Aif
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FRET FET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - S REE 15 2,412,995 2,160,093
Land use rights - {58 R A 16 400,882 401,633
Prepaid lease payments for coast B EBENEERIE 17 5,535 5,983
Goodwill GEES 18 751,948 639,308
Other intangible assets HEiEmpEE 19 377,939 399,926
Interest in an associate Bt &N AR s 20 7,188 7,739
Interests in joint ventures EEDERER 21 26,760 23,600
Deposits paid EfikE 22 485,150 375,280
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 32 1,953 352
4,470,350 4,013,914
Current assets mEEE
Inventories "BE 23 1,399,680 933,534
Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUE 5 BRF I FE N ik 24 3,575,770 3,289,310
Other debtors, deposits and HMERIRR - ke Rk
prepayments TE FIE 24 1,996,941 1,773,808
Amount due from an associate JEUR — KB A B F0E 25 3,695 2,938
Amount due from a joint venture R —RE & REFHIE 25 1,347 4,275
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 44 15,012 45
Land use rights I Hh {58 R A 16 20,008 19,452
Prepaid lease payments for coast BETENEERIE 17 817 769
Properties held for sales BERFEYE 156,774 147,670
Properties under development for FEERTYME
sales 26 653,896 388,665
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITIER 27 253,611 112,151
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR MRS 27 1,789,191 1,857,597
9,866,742 8,530,214
Current liabilities mEAR
Trade creditors and bills payable EREZERARENEE 28 1,285,526 1,599,956
Other creditors and accrued charges — H b ERT R N FES & 28 497,638 482,367
Amount due to an associate FER — KB & R R IR 29 - 13,819
Amount due to a joint venture BN —REEERIE 29 3,096 2,916
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKTA 44 7,861 1,961
Tax liabilities MBEE 118,112 109,767
Borrowings secured by pledged B E R RITIFRER
bank deposits & 5K
— repayable within one year — BR—FAEE 30 235,610 108,920
Borrowings secured by other assets ~ HH & EEREER
— repayable within one year — AR—FAEE 30 18,364 15,560
Borrowings unsecured ERERAER
— repayable within one year — AR —FAEE 30 3,709,829 1,980,837
5,876,036 4,266,103
Net current assets RENEERE 3,990,706 4,264,111
Total assets less current liabilities BEERADEE 8,461,056 8,278,025
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re SRR

At 31 December 2017

R2017% 12 A31 Aif
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FRET FET
Capital and reserves BE R &R
Share capital [N 31 147,303 148,040
Share premium and other reserves & A7 5 (8 B At {6 s 6,768,047 5,709,187
Equity attributable to owners of the AR RER AR
Company 6,915,350 5,857,227
Non-controlling interests FEPE 69,198 83,718
Total equity 1ERE TR 6,984,548 5,940,945
Non-current liabilities EREIAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIRA S 32 92,925 99,856
Borrowings secured by other assets B E {th & EFE R E R
— repayable over one year — BR—FREER 30 31,293 37,429
Borrowings unsecured EEIRIE
— repayable over one year — AR —FREE 30 1,352,290 2,199,795
1,476,508 2,337,080
8,461,056 8.278.025
The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 175 were EEEEMN2018F3 21 HE# RIRENE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FRENTSEZHEAMBHRE - XA TIE
21 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREE -
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
W =i
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company
t NF4 PN

Statutory Investment  Contributed Capital
Share Share Special surplus  Exchange revaluation surplus Other  redemption
capital  premium reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  accounts reserve  reserve

HE Ef #\ #%
B BRER GARE BERE ERRR  REME ERE AR RORR
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$(000
77 BT 7T AT T T 7T 7T BT
(Note i) (Note i)
) (i)

M1 January 2016 7820165
1

Retained
profits

R
HK8'000
3

Total

#ne
HK$000
FAT

Non-
controlling
interests

i)
HK$'000
b7

HK$ 00
BT

A1B 148,040 1,439,717 122,085 48,507 2915 (22,743) 1,667 (127) - 3610362 5350423 38,193 5,388,616

Profitfor the year &R = = - - - - - - = 749,397 749,397 763 750,160
Exchange RAE BIIE

diferences arising ~ E¥E4

on translation EiZE

to presentation

currency - - - - (22832 - - - - - (208,326) (1893  (230219)
Fairvale ganon ~ WEHERE

avalable forsale  AFEHE

investment — — — — - 35,617 - - - - 36,617 - 36,617
Reclassified to proft (HE-F 8

or loss upon e

the disposalof  REAREH

certain amount of ~ H4EHE%

aalableforsae &

Investment - - - - - (12,874) - - - - (12,874) - (12,874)
Total comprehensive EA2

(expense) income (3¢t sk

for the year 8 - - - 7 B - - ST SB81 [113) 542684
Incorporation of BB

subsicaries with X KB

non-controling ARl

interests - - - - - - - = = = = 46,655 46,655
Appropriations ARk - - - 5,185 - - = = = (5,189) - - -
Dividend paid BfifkE

(nots 19) (Wit 13) - - - - - - - - - o) @Eron) - o
At31 December 120165

2016 12A31H 148,040 1,439,717 122,085 53602  (225411) - 1,667 (127) - 4317564 5867207 83,718 5,940,945
Profit (oss) for the £/ E7|

year (BE) = = - - - - - - - 835,631 835,631 (10,828) 824,808
Exchange R E A5

diferences arising ~ EHEE

on ranslation EiEE

to presentation

currency - - - - 239,921 - - - - - 239,921 3,800 2437121
Total comprehensive £A2E

income (expense)  WE(H)

for the year 85 - - - - e - - - - G 107552 (08 106852
Aoquistion o~ EEAFH

subsicaries with X ZHE

non-controling A8

interests - - - - - - - = = = - (158%)  (15,:8%)
Incorporation of BB

subsidaries with B KB

non-controling ~~ Ad

interests - - - - - - - = = 8,404 8404
Appropriations Ik - - - 5,796 - - - (5,79) - - -
Repuchaseof  EEBEERA

ordinry shares M) (66 - - - - - - w w174 )
A31December  R2017%12A

2017 318 147,303 1,423,025 122,085 59,488 14,510 - 1,667 (127) 731 5146662 6,915,350 69,198 6,984,548

T : B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE

Notes: /Zﬁln:Y B

()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between (i) ANE @ 2 FE R R H IR REUAR 2 RIRR 1D
the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of ZAEEMREIERABZERA « RO RE
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were MERBEOFE - BARAIMRIKE1999F 4 A
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of 14 BRI 2 BB EERH 8 MBITRMN 2
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of HEEZER -

arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

(i)  The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development (i) ZEEBRHBEEEBRERFEARLME(S
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after Bl )z AR kAR B2 M B A Bl B
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic BRIk EEERE —RFEEES -

of China (the "PRC") in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.
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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBBR A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A RTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F 12431 HILFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
Profit before taxation F N Tl 852,466 829,341
Adjustments for: T
Share of profits of joint ventures PIEE &R ERE (1,760) (3,807)
Share of losses of associates D REEE RN R EE 992 945
Finance costs B & R A 198,750 180,087
Interest income FE U A (49,404) (53,299)
Gain on fair values changes of PTETMB T AR T ENRE
derivative financial instruments Z P15 (8,628) (18,966)
Gain on disposal of available for HEAHEERE S
sale investment FT1% - (12,874)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y MR RRETE
equipment 130,393 99,868
Loss on disposal and written off of & RMEETI S - 2R R
property, plant and equipment HEEE 37,323 5,294
Amortisation of land use rights o b {5 R A 8 10,650 10,498
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR E IR
payments for coast 788 806
Amortisation of other intangible H b & EEEESE
assets 40,809 41,621
Operating cash flows before EEES BRI
movements in working capital KSR RE 1,212,379 1,079,514
Increase in inventories FEIE N (454,434) (674,960)
Increase in trade debtors and bills FEUTE 5 AR SR N R UK
receivable RN (250,452) (782,080)
(Increase) decrease in other debtors, — EAthEUERER - #2& M
deposits and prepayments FEATFRIE (L 00) R (211,090) 56,904
(Increase) decrease in amounts due JE Tt & R m) ER I8 (38 00)
from associates e (757) 121,365
Decrease (increase) in amount due M —RE & ERIE
from a joint venture A (38 0) 2,928 (3,197)
Increase in properties under FERERYEE
development for sales (241,269) (115,394)
(Decrease) increase in trade creditors & 5 BRR K BN ZiE
and bills payable CRLA )8 hn (345,911) 968,139
(Decrease) increase in other creditors  H A ER R M EE R
and accrued charges Rt A ) 30 (55,028) 269,134
(Decrease) increase in amount due et — KBk & N BRI
to an associate CRLA )N (13,819) 5,113
Increase in amount due to FER —RE &S IEIE N
a joint venture 180 2,437
Decrease in derivative financial PTE RS T AR >
instruments 2,506 9,236
Cash (used in) generated from KE (TR EXREE
operations (354,767) 936,211
Income tax paid S AFETE R (39,676) (32,450)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM EEXE (A EERS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B8 (394,443) 903,761
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
\\/\ fﬁiumi%

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F 12 531 HILFEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B TFEIT FEIT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Interest received B UH B 47,154 25,415
Acquisition of subsidiaries IR BEB B A B) (B Mk

(net of cash and cash equivalents) iﬁfﬁ&%lﬁfﬁﬁlﬁ B) 38 (68,899) —
Acquisition of intangible assets FHiRE BN B A R ER

through purchase of subsidiaries é%(E?D RIS KER

(net of cash and cash equivalents HEIEE)

acquired) 34 - (100,715)
Dividend received from an associate  [A]— SR B & A m] WER AR & 20 - 6,721
Addition of land use rights BN T Hh AR & (169,354)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE  HRRRE

equipment (305,542) (419,069)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits Uz [Bl 2 K #H 4R 1717 5K 359,654 2,579,760
Placement in pledged bank deposits 17/ 2 EIFIR1T1F K (489,498) (1,589,866)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWZE « #eE NHREATE

plant and equipment 497 452
Proceeds from disposal of available HERHLERERF

for sale investment - 72,856
Increase in deposits paid BfEe 28 (233,954) (177,910)
Deposits refunded RBE G 136,917 —
Loan advances to independent third B E=HFEX

parties (18,917) —
Repayment of loan advances from BUE=HEEEN

independent third parties 39,812 —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEFH(FAEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES ResH (532,776) 228,290
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEER
Interest paid BT FE (197,063) (176,156)
New borrowings raised BISHENK 15,642,414 10,571,748
Repayment of borrowings EEERK (14,588,448) (11,227,775)
Dividend paid B E - (37,010)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁjt %15

shares (17,429) —
Capital contribution from Bt A R A IEIE S AR &

non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries 8,404 46,655
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEENEE(FFARE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE 847,878 (822,538)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN NeRFARETH(RD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BB E (79,341) 309,513
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE /MSEEEEZHE

RATE CHANGES 10,935 (21,853)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNReRERRLER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,857,597 1,569,937
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FXRFASRERAELER

AT END OF THE YEAR 1,789,191 1,857,597

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF R&RERR&EH&ER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIE S 1,789,191 1,857,597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=PAN =+ 2
RE ISR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company acts
as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements and convenience of the
financial statements users, the results and financial position
of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle

—REH

ARRB IR BREEMA L EHREE
RELRAA  ERONEEEMERXHHM
BERARBRA]) LM H&EER
HEERARRBBERARAR(NE
1) —ERRBRELSEMKILZ A
Al e ARBNREERAT - REEZ
IZEBREERDHBEABER(R
LR ERAR(TRAR]D) -« HamFEH
NHERFEM  AARZEMMRAE
REBLEMICRFRATDER I

= o

ARBAZHNEEER/RARBIAR
%) BASBEKERETIZEERE
ZE® - RIRMZAMBHRER LB
BHERERE - AREZ EE RV BR
AR T ]) (6 B HmK I K
EE)RR -

BRI REETERMBERESE
RI(TERMBEREEMN])

A 7R 68 [ 58 ) A R ) AR B R BB B 755

%8|

RAFEE  AEEHBXERBATHELE
SRR ([BAGTMA®]) B
BRUHREEANEET A

BEGERE TR REIHH
ZIBETR

EEGERE 125  HABRBERR
ZIBRTAR EERIEAE

BB RGN 2014 FE 2016 F
FA2RZETA B BB RS

£ 2 FF
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s performance and
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 36. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 36, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

ERHIIREETEEMBGREE
R(TEEMBREEN ] (&)

BT Ao - RAFERBEEYS
BEEUEITAH AR B ARFEE MBE
FENHRBRT BRI RS EERE I
BHRRAPEFALBESAZE -

FREERMS7TRZETFHEER
-3

AEBRANEEBRERULFERT - %
FEFBREBREHBEEER  E95
BREAEEMTIERETHELENE
EEE BRREKFRSED - It
S MERFEREENRSRE NS
KRS RERFTABRETHNIRE R
B AMFEINELBESREEDN

BEEME  BIERBEBEATEIE ()
MERCRENED : () HRISHKE

P /B8 2 ) 3 L A SR 75 A 8 1 4 T E AR
28 (NEXZHOFE: (VAFE
28 R () EMED -

BRZERB PO RBRES®R 2 HRS
FNRA M BRI MEEI6 A - RIFE
RIAZBERN  AEBYERERF
MILLEE R - BRER A IS IRR M FE 36 1Y
BIMRERIN - EAZFEFLEEAE
Bira M BmRENTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 1231 HIEFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ERFITREETEEMEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) A([HFEBMBE|EEN]) (&)
(Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective ERGEMNKRERZHITREETEE
M#iRE R

AR B AR R A AR 2 AR M B R R
ERZHAT REETEBHBHREE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: Al :
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ BB I BREZE BMBIA
FI%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers BAETRRSEL REANEP ZWER
and the related amendments' F15% EEEHES
HKFRS 16 Leases BAMBREER g’
F16%
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts’ BB IR EZE RBaH*
F1TH

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

2018
2019
be determined

2021

Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration’
Uncertainty over income tax treatments®

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance contracts'

Prepayment features with negative
compensation”

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture®

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures®

As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle’

Transfers of investment property’

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015 — 2017 cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

BE(ERNBRERE MXIREARE'
288)-%F2%
BEERMBRERE FEHRE TR’

ZEE)-F23%

BBH RS ER IR BER T HRS
FORZBIAR BpEE

BBH RS ER EREEBH RS LR
FARZBIAR FORUET AREEHH

REENE 4R RRAR

BBH RS ER BARRHEBFEHE
FIRZBIAR

BBH RS ER REEREBANAHAL
FOREEBLHEN LERELIAEE®
F 28 Z BRI

ERGH ARS8 REEARRAELEY
LHES R’

BEGIERE 8%y H2014FE2016FEH
LHES ARNBREEANEE

B —
BEOENFON EIRENE'

EHEN
BEMBRERD 2 R2015FE2017 R
EHEN N
it

! MN20184F1 A1 A 2 BB ZEE
AR AR -

8 R2019F1 1B 2 BHBZEE
BRI AE SR o

¢ R EAEZ BBMK Z ERBZEE
AR AERR o

¢ MN2021FE1 B1 A2 B HB 2 EE
AR AR -
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets and impairment
requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

ERHIIREETEEMBGREE
R(TEEMBREEN ] (&)

FEMBEBEENEOM MBIA

FRMBHREEFIRSIAT AR
BEEND BN ENERRUBEE
ZREZR -

BEVBRELEEFHPEAEESF
2 EBMESRIT ¢

s EBEAMKHMSEANEIRBENR
ZITECERMBEERKRGA
B AL A FEFE - B8N
5 BMRERANREREZE
BEARBEZEBKRE - RAK
RenEBER/EEAS MAARER
AEMBZEBHRE  —RNER
SR HEEE B IR HN A E -
B H) BRFKEARRERE K H
EMBEEZEFRAAFTENE
BITHR  REESREKPRIEE
BEHMELENRSREEREE
AEMHREERSZHE - &5
EN—RERAFEFEBEZHE
A EEKEF o 8 REMHE
BEONERRE MR D FET
B o O REBEBMEHRELER
£ ERAELTAEE.ZE
B URHEMEERa 2R
B(AFFIEEEE) A FEZER
23 RARBBRA RN IBSHE

7 ©

s MRMBEERE BEMBERE
HRFIORREREMEEBHER
B MIFRBEESTERFEI9
SRR BREEEEBRER - ZEY
EEEBERRETERATERR
HEEBREMESEHRNESRE
S E1E 2 S8 AR B 110 R RS
FRELMEERR - 52 - B8
BRBLEEESHAHEREES

B o

:

73




74 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBBR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=PAN =+ 2
RE ISR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following potential
impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss
to be recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would
be increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and other receivables and
deposits with financial institutions. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would reduce
the opening retained profits and increase the deferred tax
assets at 1 January 2018.

Except for the application of expected credit loss model, all
other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to
be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

ERHIIREETEEMBGREE
R(TEEMBREEN ] (&)

FEMBEBEENEOM MBIA
(&)

BIEAREBPR 2017 F12 A 31 B 2875

TERRBREBBIR  AARIESTEH
BRERBEMIEREERIE IR 2B
FEWMT

BREMS ARAREFREAN - BREE
MBEHREEEIR BN EEHRR
R ERAEE T REHNAFTE L
MBEEMAARELEZEERBE  EAX
SENERATEWBRSEAFWRIEK
IRIB UL R E B R I TR B R 45

RIBEARBEZTZFHE - MAREES
BEHMEEREREL - BIASER2018
F1A1AERZREBRR SRS
BRREEB G ERFEIORERZR
AR T RERNMEHERK
B oA M EMERERR RIS 2 B
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F1A18 Z B4R Ed A RIE R T
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS
15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Group is principally engaged in the sales and
distributions of LPG and oil products. Currently under
HKAS 18 the Group recognises the revenue from the
sales and distribution of LPG and oil products when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed and considers
itself acting as a principal in its sales and distribution of
LPG and oil products due to its significant exposure to
credit risk of customers and inventory risk. HKFRS 15 has
established new requirements including the principal versus
agent consideration applicability of significant financing
components and the presentation of deposits received from
customers.

ERHIIREETEEMBGREE
R(TEEMBREEN ] (&)

FEMEBEENE 1M ERARAK
Al#&)
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

The directors of the Company are still in the process of
assessing the full impact of the application of HKFRS 15
on the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepayments for land use rights as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$199,160,000 as disclosed in note 38. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of approximately HK$12,821,000
and refundable rental deposits received of approximately
HK$17,775,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
initial measurement of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised land
use rights for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the
other new and amendments to HKFRS issued but not yet
effective will have no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO”").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see accounting policy above) less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill, and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are recognised so as to
write off the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. For vessels,
the residual value of each vessel is equal to the product of
its light weight tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at dry
dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as they
are incurred and depreciates these costs using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both
the land use rights and development cost for the property.
Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs of completion.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Properties under development for sales (Continued)

Development costs of property comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful live less
impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building for own use

When the Group makes payment for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 46.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including bank balances, pledged
bank deposits, amounts due from an associate and a joint
venture, trade debtors and bills receivable, other debtors
and refundable deposits are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, amounts due to an associate and a
joint venture and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held for
trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been received and receivable is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

i,rm; F

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill relating to the sales and
distribution of LPG/oil products business are impaired
that requires estimation of the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. The Group performed impairment
assessment by estimating the value in use of the CGUs
in which the goodwill is attributable to. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
discount rate represents the rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or where there is
revision in future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable
changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amounts of goodwill was approximately HK$751,948,000
(2016: HK$639,308,000). There was no impairment loss
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016. Details of the goodwill are disclosed in note 18.
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

In assessing the recoverability of trade debtors, the
directors of the Company take into consideration the credit
history including default or delay in payments, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of the trade debtors.

When there is objective evidence that trade receivables
may be impaired, the Group estimates the future cash
flows of those balances. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial assets’ original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of trade debtors was approximately HK$3,528,853,000
(2016: HK$3,164,818,000).

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
rental income of LPG bottles for the year. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
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HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Sales and distribution of LPG HE RS HRIER 7,976,286 6,797,470
Sales of oil products $HE MM 13,477,587 8,689,014
Sales of electronic products HEETEMm 589,122 201,730
Rental income of LPG bottles HERIERIR 15,623 12,192
22,058,618 15,700,406
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6.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group currently organises into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesaler customers, bottled LPG end-
users and auto-gas end-users. The operation is
carried out in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau for
both onshore and offshore customers.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from selling of oil products to both wholesaler
and retailer customers and leasing of oil vessels.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones.

4. Sales and distribution of NG — In prior years, the
Group began to venture into sales and distribution
of NG industry, but still in preliminary stage, the
segment information reported below includes assets
related to the sales and distribution of NG business.
The NG business is still in development stage and no
revenue is contributed during the year. The segment
information reported below only includes assets and
liabilities related to the sales and distribution of NG
industry.

5. Manufacturing and distribution of charcoals — In
December 2016, the Group acquired a technical
know-how for production of charcoals through
acquisition of two companies incorporated and
operated in the PRC. The Group started trial of
production in year 2017 and expected to commence
manufacturing and distribution of charcoals operation
in year 2018. Hence, the segment information
reported below only includes assets and liabilities
related to the manufacturing and distribution of
charcoals.
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Segment revenue and results FRB AR ¥R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and INTAEZERDBEREESEE D ZA
results by reportable and operating segment. EEIWAREEDNT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HF2017F 12831 HILERF
Sales and Oil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HERSH e
RILE mRER BEFER oy
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAEIT F&IT FET FET
Segment revenue o EIRA 7,991,909 13,477,587 589,122 22,058,618
Segment profit D ¥EE F 775,858 232,333 46,896 1,055,087
Share of profits of joint ventures MEA &R 1,760 - - 1,760
Share of loss of an associate DE—FREEE QA
g (992) - - (992)
776,626 232,333 46,896 1,055,855
Other income H A KA 45,419
Central administration costs H R EFRRK AN (49,135)
Directors’ emoluments T (9,551)
Changes in fair values of TEMBIAATE
derivative financial instruments 2 2% 8,628
Finance costs BEMKA (198,750)

Profit before taxation BR 7 Al V4 A 852,466




106 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBBR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 1231 HIEFE
6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HI¥EBEHE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SBKRARER(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EFE2016F 1231 HILFE
Sales and il Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products  Consolidated
SHE kD iH HE
RIER H i S5 7% BTEM e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue D ERA 6,809,662 8,689,014 201,730 15,700,406
Segment profit 2483 A 773,649 201,167 10,061 984,877
Share of profits of joint ventures H1E& & d %A 3,807 — = 3,807
Share of losses of associates DB N B E1E (945) = = (945)
776,511 201,167 10,061 987,739
Other income HA A 49,385
Central administration costs Fh L E IR A AR (48,994)
Gain on disposal of available HEJHEEREZ
for sale investment s 12,874
Directors’ emoluments =EMe (10,542)
Changes in fair values of THEMBIARTE
derivative financial instruments 2 2% 18,966
Finance costs BEMKA (180,087)
Profit before taxation BRE AR 829,341

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers, joint ventures or associates. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of certain interest income, central administration
costs, gain on disposal of available for sale investment,
directors’ emoluments, changes in fair values of derivative
financial instruments and finance costs.

The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property
investment and development in the PRC and the revenue
generate from this business is included as the consolidated
revenue of the Group. There was no property sold for
the two years ended 31 December 2017. The operating
result and other financial information of this subsidiary are
not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessments.

EBN B CETRREANKE 2 EFTK
RIRMFESHER - EXMERZAED
BBABRBINBER - BEDENH
BRF] - DBHEMIERTDERDEBUR
FBWA -~ PREEKA - HERHH
EREZMRT BEEME  TTEMBT
ARFEZEERBEKAK

AEBEZ —HHBARRTREEYE
RERERE  WEEBMEEMNKAD
BREAZEBENGZEAERA - B ZE2017
12 A 31 B LM {EF E I £ & E 7]
M o B AR ZEEEERHAME
BRI EALE BEERREERR - B
EB RSB R RIAFTS o
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEERAR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and LTRIZEENREDZAEBEER

liabilities by operating segment: BEIT
Segment assets PHEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HRIER 4,031,090 3,968,170
Sales and distribution of NG HE R D SHRAR 53,342 158,696
Oil products business JH oh S 6,083,089 5,140,369
Sales of electronic products HEBTEMm 475,700 213,500
Manufacturing and distribution of BIE R 5 SHARIR
charcoals 109,537 102,519
Total segment assets BAKEEE 10,752,758 9,583,254
Deferred tax assets BT EE 1,953 352
Pledged bank deposits BHEIRRITIFR 253,611 112,151
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHR MRS 1,789,191 1,857,597
Derivative financial instruments PTEME T E 15,012 45
Properties under development for sales {3 &2 E T W% 653,896 388,665
Properties held for sales BEFREWHE 156,774 147,670
Other unallocated assets Hit R DB & E 713,897 454,394
Consolidated assets REEE 14,337,092 12,544,128




1081 NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBEBR Q&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 1231 HIEFE
6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHERERARE)
Segment liabilities SHEEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG SHE M HBIER 748,104 912,102
Sales and distribution of NG SHE KD KRR = 123
Oil products business TS 1,004,013 1,155,596
Sales of electronic products HEBEFEMm 114 114
Manufacturing and distribution of BUE R D AR
charcoals 963 1
Total segment liabilities BMOEEE 1,753,194 2,067,936
Derivative financial instruments PIHEMETA 7,861 1,961
Tax liabilities MBaE 118,112 109,767
Deferred tax liabilities BB EE 92,925 99,856
Borrowings EEN 5,347,386 4,292 541
Other unallocated liabilities HitRHBEEEE 33,066 31,122
Consolidated liabilities mEBaRE 7,352,544 6,603,183
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MEIED KRR RN D HHE» B E R
allocating resources between segments: =

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than deferred tax assets, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative financial
instruments, and certain deposits paid, certain other
receivables, properties under development for sales,
properties held for sales and certain property, plant
and equipment); and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets.

MBEEDNEEZEZ2H/ORORIE
HEEE  CEMBITER - #]IT
kR e  TEMBIARET
BEftEE B THEMREER - &
ERRTYE FAEGENERE
THE - B8 REREIRIN) - R

BERBEDNAEEZE2®mD BB
FEERBGAE - B3R TEMH
TANETEMREMNZRERSIN)

AREEREESREEHHRIERS
ARE -
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Other segment information Htt &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE2017FE12831 AILEE

Manufacturing
Sales and Sales of Oil Sales of and
distribution distribution products electronic distribution

of LPG of NG business products of charcoals  Unallocated Consolidated
HERAER HERSE #He  RERZR
BiLE P3| g1k 4] irER ¥ Yo 3K
HK$:000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Amounts included in the measure  AFEA BTN EE
of segment profit or segment ERTAZEE:

assets:
Addtion to goodwil RERE - - 96,545 - - - 96,545
Addtion to non-current assets REFRIEE

(Note) Wit 15,178 - 294,051 - 1,342 233,073 543,644
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% + EEERELZ

equipment il 84,100 - 44,789 - 76 1,428 130,393
Amortisation of other intangiole M EFEES

assets 23,689 - 17,120 - - - 40,809
Amortisation of land use rights THERESY 2,363 - 992 - - 7,205 10,650
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREARE RS

payments for coast 788 - - - - - 788

Loss on disposal and written off of  HERHEHIE - #2%
property, plant and equipment Rk B 28,952 - 8,371 - - - 37,323
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Other segment information (Continued) HttpEEIE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HFE2016FE 12831 AILEE

Manufacturing
Sales and Sales of Oil Sales of and
distribution distribution products electronic distribution
of LPG of NG business products of charcoals  Unallocated Consolidated
HERDH  HERAH #He  RER2A
BiLw AR gt 4 irER i 3K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Amounts included in the measure  AFEABEFIHHEE
of segment profit or segment ERTALLE:
assets:
Addtion to non-current assets REFRDEE
(Note) (i) 353,959 7,568 321,082 - 100,417 118,945 902,821
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% * B2 kREZ
equipment kS 79,817 - 18,703 - - 1,348 99,868
Amortisation of other intangible ~ EMtENEAEEH
assets 24,501 - 17,120 - - - 41,621
Amortisation of land use rights ThEREER 1987 - 1,015 - - 7,496 10,498
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRBRET AR
payments for coast 806 - - - - - 806
Loss on disposal and written off of  HERHEHE - B35
property, plant and equipment RiE ER 2,748 - 2,546 - - - 5,004
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Kt - IERBEETBIREERBEAE -
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Geographical information mEZHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country AEB Y REEBUNRBEB(ETELEE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. HE) « SBPIRAE o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external AREEIIBRZEFWMABRUNEEEE 2
customers is presented based on customers’ location of NEBEY - NEBIERBEEZERIA
the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current EEMBMEZYWT
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets:

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
SrBMERKA ERENEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ir FET FEiT FEIT
Hong Kong B
(country of domicile) (FEZEMR) 3,391,793 3,421,432 754,078 668,102
The PRC =8|
(excluding Hong Kong) (TBEEB) 12,734,872 8,096,377 3,668,823 3,343,430
Other countries (Note b) ~ HABER (ff:£b) 5,931,953 4,182,597 45,496 2,030
Total BET 22,058,618 15,700,406 4,468,397 4,013,562
Notes:(a)  Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. KizF - (a) %E?ﬁéﬁ BETBREEHRBE
(b)  Other countries represented mainly countries in the b) HABRRETE/R/RDEAHME
Asia Pacific, United States and Australia. K EBE KRN o
Information about major customers BREEERZEH
Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the MR2017%F L TITEFERMAEEHEE
total sales of the Group in year 2017 and corresponding BWRE10% A EZ A+ K 2016 F 2 #8
figure in 2016 are as follows: EEF :
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A (Note a) BEANEF a) 2,425,804 Note ¢ fitc
Customer B (Note b) ZPB(MiE b) Note ¢ ffitc 1,938,000
Notes:(a)  Revenue from oil product business. Kzt :(a) SHEBBZEA -
(b)  Revenue from sales and distribution of LPG. (o) HERDHEIERZBA
(c) Contributed to less than 10% of the Group’s total () EBEBTFAEEEBEFELR10%
revenue for the relevant years. mAEU A o

2
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7. Other Gains and Losses and Other Income

HEtreRIGRREMUEA

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Changes in fair values of derivative PTEMB T ARTE 2R
financial instruments 8,628 18,966
Compensation from the PRC MR BB E (H )
government (Note) 66,743 —
Gain on disposal of available for sale HER fHEEREMS
investment - 12,874
Net exchange gain (loss) b SRS (BE) 137,070 (154,098)
Other gains and losses HAFT1S k&S 212,441 (122,258)
Interest income on pledged RMB BEEMARBRITER
bank deposits FEHA 12,423 20,081
Interest income R B U A 36,981 33,218
Others HAh, 19,318 10,226
Other income E A 68,722 63,525

Note

: During the year, the PRC government paid approximately
RMB58,086,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$66,743,000)
to a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group as an one
off compensation for early termination of the lease contract
of an auto-gas station. Due to the construction of an urban
underground railway, an auto-gas station located above the
proposed underground railway is required to be shut down.
After negotiation with the relevant government authority, an
unconditional compensation was paid in May 2017 upon
the demolition of the auto-gas station. The leasehold land
is handed over back to the relevant government authority.
The related losses on written off of the property, plant and
equipment of the auto-gas station amounted to approximately
HK$10,780,000.

=3

ER FERFR-RE2ERERTE

B8 A 7 2 A R ¥ 4958,086,000 7T
(FZ R 466,743,000/8 7T) © 1EAIR
BRIEAENRBEEARN—XIE
BE BRTEERE M NEE -
LA NS 2 FRE A — @5 0
Rk A ZERAR o A4S 3B E1AE BE R 30 F9
BE% BEREMGWEFRBEZE B
2017 F5 AXN T BIEHNEES
WG E X BB AFEET o #sE T
BEMRhYE MBS RREZEBE
184710,780,000 7 7T



Annual Report 2017 =ZZ—tFF3H | 113

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE
8. Finance Costs 8. MERE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Interests on bank trust receipts loans IRITIEEUIR B R
and other loans EMERZ FIE 57,779 54,625
Interests on bank loans pledged with AAREERITE KK Z
RMB bank deposits RITIERZFE 10,999 16,446
Interests on bank borrowings wholly HRSFRNEHEE L
repayable within five years RITIEZ T B 129,972 109,016
198,750 180,087
9. Taxation 9. MEXH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated RizaEmEEMEEKER AR 2
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income RIS REBIE
represents:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFHET FET
Current Tax BV AR 18
Hong Kong a5 10,394 3,635
Other regions in the PRC AR B A b [ 35,025 81,484
45,419 85,119
Deferred tax (note 32) BIERIE (A7 32)
Current year AEFEFEEAE (17,756) (5,938)
27,663 79,181
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEBRER I EFE 2 et B R
estimated assessable profit for both years. i FIE TR 16.5% 51 & o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BB E AR MBI ZEREHE( D
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation ERMSEHEDREEMSHEEEIF
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC Bl PEKMEAREAZHER25% °

subsidiaries is 25%.
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9.

Taxation (Continued)

9.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016

WA (&)

AREFZBRAX AR RS 8 K EM
PHENBERZFHADENERAT

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation 7 BT Vs A 852,466 829,341
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% RN H T 2R 25% EJr*éZﬁIE 213,117 207,335
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A FIEE S B 2 T fs &
for tax purpose 80,933 94,366
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMIRA 2 RIGE
tax purpose (38,197) (41,582)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted & F 2 Fi 7% 52 &
from tax (230,044) (201,375)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERMRIGE B 2 TS 2 33,498 26,396
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A S0 B AR TERR 2 B HR B B
differences previously not recognised MEZERE (8,916) (1,841)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 4E Bl R IER 2 BB &8
recognised (19,742) (19,523)
Effect of different tax rate of group AEEERBNA IDWPZEWJ
entities operating in jurisdictions BRLE 2 MR R 2 o2&
other than the PRC (2,986) 15,405
Taxation for the year REFEFIA 27,663 79,181

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group

is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are set out
in note 32.

ERZRER/AEE T ELEHEER

@ A2 ANt 7 2R (B A B (b 2 AT S R
) o

RS EEN B EFIBRNMES2 o
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10. BRIRATEF

10. Profit Before Taxation

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived &% s A 2 H16 (5A)
at after charging (crediting): THIER -
Amortisation of land use rights T b AR 5 (B A
(included in administrative expenses) 1T HA) 10,650 10,498
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & = T8 15 78 & I8 5 £
for coast (included in cost of sales) (BIEEHEKRAA) 788 806
Amortisation of other intangible assets £t 2 & E# 4 (B4
(included in selling and distribution EHERDHEZHA)
expenses) 40,809 41,621
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BREM N & 4,475 4,228
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR BT E
equipment 130,393 99,868
Loss on disposal and written off of o RMEHTE - A R
property, plant and equipment HfE 2 1R 37,323 5,294
Minimum lease payments under PWAE B HELH
operating leases for offices, oll R muh e & 8 4
vessels, leasehold land and LPG =EHEE
station 57,545 41,208
Gross rental income from leasing of MERANEYE - HE
office premises, leasehold land, T BERBEMZ
warehouses and oil vessels FRVIEEL N (9,756) (2,309)
Less: Direct operating expenses JR - B EET 1,916 254
(7,840) (2,055)
Staff costs EE KA
Directors’ fees (note 11) E50e(WiE11) 330 330
Directors’ other emoluments EEHME
(note 11) (HteE11) 9,221 10,212
Contributions to retirement benefit % 108,000/5 7T
schemes excluding HK$108,000 (2016 : 108,0007/87T)
(2016: HK$108,000) included in EFFAZEME 2 RIK
directors’ emoluments BAIFT B 10,298 10,126
Staff salaries and bonus BIFe &S 133,643 121,534
153,492 142,202
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11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 11. EFRFETHARMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2016: 9) Bt ER FOMZ(2016: 9L ) BEER
directors and chief executive were as follows: AZBEmT -

Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
HiEs BUHMTES
Chiu i Cheung Chan

Shum Sing Kwan Yuk
Chun, Chung, Hung Wai, Xu
Lawrence  CenZiniu  Raymond Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe Total 2017
O #RR REE O RER  BE aon

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
fér  FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  TET TET

Fess s - - - - - - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments Efpite
Salaries and other benefts e RRA 3,000 1,040 1,320 1,500 1,629 624 - - - 9,113
Contrbutons to refirement R
bengfits schemes 18 18 18 18 18 18 - - - 108
Total emoluments Heag 3,018 1,058 1,338 1,518 1647 642 130 100 100 9,551
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
#7E% BusifEs
Chiu Sy Cheung Chan
Shum Shum Sing Ka Kwan Yuk
Siu Chun, Chung, Fai Wang Hung Wai, Xu

Hung  Lawence  CenZnu  Raymond Brian Jan  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe  Total 2016
L)% S-S E I I 12 FHE REE BAE AHW6
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tt TEr TEr TEr T Tt Tt T TEr TEr

Fees s = - - - - - 180 100 100 30
Other emoluments Eftle
Selaries and other benets e RAMEA 3,000 B0 A0 180 22 709 - - - 100
Contrbutons fo retiement benefs  BAREHETEIAS:
sohemes 18 18 18 18 18 18 - - - 108

Total emoluments Hegs 3018 868 1,538 1618 2,043 Y 130 100 100 10542
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11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 11. EFRFETHARME(Z)
(Continued)
No director or chief executive waived any emoluments RNREANTEEERETANE

12.

during both years.

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were LB HTEENE T EERA S
mainly for their services in connection with the management FEANNTNANEBEL 2R ©
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration LR B IR TEESMETERM
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of NEEEANARIER ZRIE -

the Company.

Mr. Shum Siu Hung is also the Chief Executive of the BVEEETTBRRRZEEITHA
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include B HFiERBEC et BiE ERE
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. BT BFTIR B 2 ART% ©
Employees’ Emoluments 12. ERE#M<

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REE S U=t AT BE3A(2016 :
Group, three (2016: three) are directors of the Company SRLARRNRES - A2 &N Ll
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. FEERA - Her2(1(2016 : 2107 ) & 7
The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) AEZzME&HENT :

individuals are disclosed as follows:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Salaries and allowances e KEA 3,941 4,535
Contributions to retirement benefit ERERF 2R
schemes 36 36
3,977 4,571
2017 2016
Their emoluments were within the HE&E& N TFATEE
following bands
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 2,000,000 /& JT 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 7 Jt. 1 2
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AEEWERE S EA@ER AL
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon < tEABEEMASINAKREEE

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Z BB - SERKREBALZFIE -

117
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13. Dividend 13. B2
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
2015 final dividend of HK 2.5 cents per 20164 12 A 31 A It FE N#E
share recognised as distribution during  RAD K2 2015 F & 2.5
the year ended 31 December 2016 Bz REBRE B - 37,010
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary 72017 F A I R 3 oK 2 K T
shareholders of the Company during 2017, nor any B BmEHARAR » TRERRRE
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting EAARE (2016 - BRI ZRER2.5
period (2016: dividend HK2.5 cents paid per share amounts 7l - #8937,010,000787T) °
to approximately HK$37,010,000).
14. Basic Earnings Per Share 14. BREFET
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable ARBZHEEABESRERBR TR
to the owners of the Company is based on the following THBUERRTE
data:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Earnings ¥
Earnings for the purpose of basic FTEEREARRTMERAZ
earnings per share (profit for the year ABF (KR RER ARGEA
attributable to the owners of il
the Company) 835,631 749,397
2017 2016
Number of shares En& A
Weighted average number of ordinary — sTE&REKREFFTERAZ
shares for the purpose of basic LA hnkE I8
earnings per share 1,475,426,704 1,480,398,216
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no REZE2017F k201612 A31 8 1k
potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended HE - ARIERNEABTEERNDA

31 December 2017 and 20186. A MEZ7|SREERF -
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. M% - RBBERBME

Pumps and
Gasandoil  equipment  Furniture,
Construction Leasehold  Plantand  plantand forgas fixtures and Motor

inprogress  Buildings improvements  machinery facilities andoil  equipment vehicles il vessels
BEnR B%R REREE RRERc GKULORE
ERIE 8% 1] B RiE  RRRER Rt i il
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

COST i
At 1 January 2016 2016%1 718 21,550 30,142 14,863 3,165 1,366,944 421,83 20,362 50,952 17,60 2,046,091
Avising on acquisition of property, EBBEAHBAR

plantand equipment though ~~ WEDE + BER

purchase of subsidiaries REMEE - - - 57 - - - - - 597
Additions HE 209,380 = ) Iy 162,871 5,597 1328 10,520 478,656 868,447
Disposals and virie-off HERHH = = = = 27%) (213 (59) (3120) (7599) (15,699
Exchange realignment Erag (12,588) 2,50 (208) (204) (76,377) (25,858 (1,009) (242) (18,873) (140,043
At 31 December 2016 H2016E12A318 218,342 36,640 14,703 3545 1,440,648 399,460 20,627 55,924 569,450 2,759,339
Avising on acquision of RkEHENE

subsidares (note 33) MEE %) - - - - - - 3 2,351 - 2,388
Additions e 235,784 1,557 210 1,342 18 5,988 936 3,341 56,306 305,542
Transfer & (1,287) 1,287 - - - - - - - -
Disposals and virie-off HE R 1,18 - - - (5,25 (28736) (308) 2,115) (015 (1)
Exchange reaignment R 21,691 2,361 189 249 70,507 2,459 907 2,295 %140 144,798
At 31 December 2017 R017E12A318 467,348 41,845 15,162 513 1,505,948 399,71 22,199 61,796 640,744 3,150,349
DEPRECIATION AND fTERRE

[MPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 R16EIA1A = U AT6 5,857 1,080 210,818 189,512 13,601 28,305 8,789 539,438
Provided for the year Epag - 230 1728 154 58579 213 1614 7013 5,306 99,868
Eiminated on disposals E R

and write-off 5] = = = - (599) (1,699) (49 (2,680) (4,926 (9,947)
Exchange realignment S - (1,480) 29 (76) (13,686) (12,599) (764) (1,476) (@ (30,113)
At 31 December 2016 0165128318 - 22,336 1,556 1,158 315,118 198,349 14,402 31,162 9,165 599,246
Provided for the yeer EREh - 2207 1418 W M 25 1,562 6649 MS0 130398
Eiminated on disposals REERHER

and write-off it = = - - (1,437) (10,897) (216) (1,621) (667) (14,898)
Exchange reaignment EiE% - 1,457 28 80 14,930 12,063 28 1,460 872 31,613
At 31 December 2017 H2017E12A318 - 26,040 8,997 1474 392,756 222,091 16,436 37,650 40910 746,354
CARRYING VALUES FAE
At 31 December 2017 H017E12A318 467,348 15,805 6,165 3662 1,113,192 177,080 5,163 24,146 599,834 2,412,995

At 31 December 2016 Ro016%E12A318 218,342 14,304 1147 2387 1,125,530 201,111 6,225 24,762 560285 2,160,003
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. ¥ - BBRWMW(2Z)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except BRIEZETIZNN - LAz - SR
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight- HE © DETINENEAERENE -

line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease BF 278 49 4F Bf

Leasehold 20% to 33'/,% HEMERE 20% %= 33'/3,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33'/:% W23 K& 4% %= 33'/,%

Gas and oil plant and ~ Over the shorter of the lease RERBERSR BEFERAERLTH
facilities term of coast use right and i i FAAE R 4 F HASK

land use right, or 25 years 25 FHR 7 B &

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33"/,% fARHMZAR 10%=33"/%
for gas and ol M &

Furniture, fixtures and  15% to 16%/:% BRI HEBRER  15% % 167:%
equipment =

Motor vehicles 16°/:% to 33"/,% TE 16%/,% = 33'/;%

Qil vessels 3% to 11% a:iie 3% % 11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC. BF A RFE (FARIHN) ©

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated TEE SR E Ty pA R Bl (BB E ) ©

outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately STARRMEREFERmEL 1,632,000
HK$1,632,000 (2016: HK$1,887,000) included in gas 7B 7r(2016 : 1,887,000/ 7T ) 2 RIE R
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for BOARBEABETER - MELAHS
short term to generate rental income. The rental income WA > RELZE2017F 12 31 BIEFE
generated was approximately HK$15,623,000 (2016: FrEE A 2 e WA %A 15,623,000 7T

HK$12,192,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017. (2016 : 12,192,000/87T) °




Annual Report 2017 =ZZ2—tFFH | 12]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=PAN =+ 2
RE ISR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
EE2017F 12 531 HILFEE

16. Land Use Rights

16. T Hi{EFE

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
The Group’s land use rights comprise:  AREE 2 + i {F A -
Land use rights in Hong Kong REBZ LR 24,702 25,498
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, R E (BRI 2
in the PRC b fE A 396,188 395,587
420,890 421,085
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEHREHNINT:
Non-current asset EMENE E 400,882 401,633
Current asset MENEE 20,008 19,452
420,890 421,085

In December 2016, the Group acquired a land in the PRC
from the PRC Government for construction of LPG bottling
plant. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of
these land use rights in respect of which the Group was
not yet granted formal title of ownership amounted to
approximately HK$169,550,000 (2016: HK$168,935,000).
In the opinion of directors of the Company, the absence
of formal title of these land use rights does not impair the
value of the relevant properties of the Group. The directors
of the Company also believe that formal title of these land
use rights will be granted to the Group in due course.
The land is carried at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses items.

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the “Land”)
in year 2011. The size of the Land is 15,750 square meters.
The Group is developing half of the Land to construct a
property for owner-occupied purpose and the remaining
half for properties for sales. The detail of the properties
under development for sales is disclosed in note 26.

R2016F 12 B + 7~ & B # B BT
AP EN T BERIERR
B - N2017FE12A31H - K& B
MR R T IE R A 2 4t
9 BR [ {E #169,550,000 8 7T (2016 :
168,935,000 87T) - NAREERS -
ZETHFERARET AESEXEREL
TEREAEEAEDENEE - A2
REERA ST ERAENLEAE
ERBEBERER TAER - ZLi
R Sh K AR RETEE SE R RETREE R
THB AIER °

AREBR20MFURB—RBURIKE
HELtw(ZLH]) ZLHEBER
15,750 F 75K - REBIEERZ T2
—HAEE-AETARAYME BT
FARRERGENE - FEERDTY
HEZFHBERME 26 5
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17. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 17. BERFGHEREA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REE B FEMHEHERE
for coast comprise: BIE:
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC R B (FHABINEE 2 B 6,352 6,752
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEFREMDT:
Non-current asset EMENE B 5,535 5,983
Current asset MENEE 817 769
6,352 6,752
The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights EBEEMNBEERENERKE §5F
to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years, FA#E - FR19994F1 A1 BF - HEH
starting from 1 January 1999. NF20FE28%F -
18. Goodwill 18. W&
HK$’000
FET
COST BN
At 1 January 2016 7K2016F1 A1 H 658,648
Exchange realignment kS (19,340)
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A 31 H 639,308
Exchange realignment PE i AR 16,095
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Wie B B /&8 1 ) 7 B AE (Mt 33) 96,545
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F 12 A31 H 751,948
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2017 R20174 12 A31 H 751,948

At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A 31 H 639,308
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18. Goodwill (Continued) 18. @ (&)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to eleven (2016: ten) individual
CGUs in segments in relation to the sales and distribution
of LPG and oil products segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering 5-year
period, and discount rates at average 11% (2016: 10%)
for LPG segment and average 15% (2016: 16%) for oil
products business segment. The cash flows for the financial
budgets are using a steady decline/growth rate ranging
from -6% to 5% (2016: -10% to 5%) for a 5-year period.
The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are extrapolated
without any decline/growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and the management’s expectations for the
market development.

REEARANE EXFHIEAEED
B = 111{8(2016 : 1018) BREHEE kD
HRER A RP BEERREEELES

fiL o

NERGEABNZA MR EE
METZMEAREMENT

ISR EA BN 2 AT E £ 58 T iRIE
FREBEFELAET % TEERAE
BEEMEZSFHUBBEERF 2]
EREEANERLEIADEHTRE11%
(2016 : 10%) * Mo =B » BT H =X
15% (2016 : 16%) 5F & - B IE FE & =
ZHEEREUNSFHZEBE TR R
RNF-6% 5% (2016 : -10E 5%) #E
B o k5 FHEZEERENASTHEREE
HH - ARG RERA S REERAE
BEREEZEMEERIABIEREHEE
REFE  ZETRBEEMZBERE
BEREEEETZMISREMmMED -
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19. Other Intangible Assets

19. Hft#Efiz R E

Distribution Business Leasing  Technical  Customer

network license agreements know-how relationships Total

SHRR BERUE Haks 53 ] EFmE at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHAT FHT T FET FET FHAT

COST 5783
At 1 January 2016 1201641 A 1H 348,793 28,238 14,564 - 102,722 494,317
Exchange adjustments RS (22,297) (1,583) (981) 604 = (24,207)
Arising on acquisition of EREANBAR

intangible assets through WiEEpEED

purchase of subsidiaries EE(M754)

(note 34) - - - 99,880 - 99,880
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31 8 326,496 26,655 13,633 100,484 102,722 569,990
Exchange adjustments & 1 A 20,129 1,429 841 5,440 - 27,839
At 31 December 2017 2017512 A318 346,625 28,084 14,474 105,924 102,722 597,829
AMORTISATION HBREE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 R2016%F1 410 92,408 12,915 14,564 = 17,120 137,007
Charge for the year ERZTH 22,901 1,600 = - 17,120 4,621
Exchange adjustments 5 AR (6,957) (676) (931) - = (8,564)
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31 8 108,352 13,839 13,633 - 34,240 170,064
Charge for the year FRAXH 22,387 1,302 - - 17,120 40,809
Exchange adjustments [ 5 2% 7,490 686 841 — = 9,017
At 31 December 2017 R2017£12A31H 138,229 15,827 14,474 - 51,360 219,890
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2017 R2017%£12 A31H 208,396 12,257 - 105,924 51,362 377,939
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31 8 218,144 12,816 - 100,484 68,482 399,926

The distribution network, the business license, the leasing
agreements and customer relationship were acquired from
third parties in business combinations. The technical know-
how was acquired through purchase of subsidiaries.

DM EXRR - BERELEP
MEDEXFAHTAFE=ZTBA - &
M RE BRI B A B MRS
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19. Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license
Leasing agreements
Technical know-how
Customer relationships

10 to 15 years
5 to 15 years
5to 10 years
10 years

6 years

20. Interest in an Associate

19. RfuEERE (&)

LB EEEBRAERES -
BV EENAERREA T S

=113
N
4

2 AR A 10E 154
=S IR 5& 154
S 5ZE 104
AT A0 55k 104
BREBE 6F

20. BIELAFHER

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of interests in unlisted associates  3F - HH#E 2 A BIREZEAK
At 1 January ®w1A1H 7,739 15,960
Share of net losses, other SEEIEFE - EfEm|
comprehensive expenses and Wzs K g 2
dividend (551) (8,221)
At 31 December ®12 A31H 7,188 7,739

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest
in the following associate:

Principal
place of
operation

Class of
shares held

Country of
Name of entity registration

i1t EREX

FEEERE FMIRHEN

KEEIERRERAR  PRC PRC Registered
(3888 ) (Note) capital

KBEMBRRERAR  H H AR
(TRBHEINEG ) (Hiz)

Note: ¥R/&7##1/E is established on 5 February 2015. #/&8/R (3K
& )AMRAF, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
owns 50% of the ownership interests in Zk/E# %78 and the
remaining 50% is owned by BB T EEBMR AR A A (“ Ik
B E®"). However, according to the memorandum and
association of FK/EHEHE, ZKEMTEE has the right to
appoint 3 out of 5 executive directors, thus, BKEH T E &
has over 50% voting power in the board of directors which
relevant activities are decided and thus has control over the
board of directors in ZK/&EEFT/E . Accordingly, BK/EE S is
considered as an associate of the Company.

R2017F R2016F12A31H » A&
BT E BB & R AR A E -

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital held
by the Group
FREMBERT
BEEELH
2017 2016

Principal activity

ERED

50 50 Sales and
distribution of
energy products

HE R
23 BEIREE

Hiat R BB FBR2015F2 B5H KL °
ARAREZEBMABZHB R RFERER
(KB)EBRAA HFEKREBEHE
50% Z ¥z 0 iR T Z 50% 4 = A Bk
BT EERRER ARG T
EBDER - AM - BIBKEGEHE
ZER KB mMEBEAREMSIN
TEEMEHSIN - Bt - ZREHHE
ERESERATHBAEIDNHESEA
50% 1% W MEA KB ENEE
B2l MLKREETEER
Y=Y /NCTd /NG
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20. Interest in an Associate (Continued) 20. BiBAFESR(Z)
Summarised financial information of associates REAFZHEEHEE
Summarised financial information in respect of each of AEBEZHERT 2B ERBEEZHRN
the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised T o THHBERBE ARBEREH
financial information below represents amounts shown in R EE R R 2 Bt N B B 7S TR BT
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance TIRZ &% - A LEEEAREHA
with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using the AR EGRA SRR AR ©

equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
RGBS b5 NishzE F iy
Current assets MENBEE 84,109 18,483
Non-current assets IEMBEE 216 83
Current liabilities nBBE (69,949) (3,088)
Revenue A 426,488 111,066
Loss and total comprehensive expense AREEEE N 2 H X H4AE
for the year (1,102) (2,884)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B RS E R E R AR A B S R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in TRoBE A E=EEEBE SRR
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial T
statements:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FETT
Net assets EEFE 14,376 15,478
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEBFMEREEINE2HER
interest in BR/EBIE T RE R L 17 50% 50%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AN BREEEFTE 2 258k
in ZR8 BTG H{E 7,188 7,739
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20. Interest in an Associate (Continued) 20. RELAFRER (&)
Summarised financial information of associates BREAFZMBESHEBE (&)
(Continued)
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sinopec NewOcean Energy Company R A L # /F &R B R 2 &
Limited (“Sinopec NewOcean”) (Note) ([ A& ) (H1:t)
Current assets mBEE - =
Non-current assets EMBEE - =
Current liabilities mEAE - =
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE = =
Revenue WA - =
Loss and total comprehensive expense B & 5k A 2 BB M2
for the period up to the completion of sz H#42%8
dissolution = (116)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB RS E R E B R AR A B S R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in MRzEE A ERREE SRR
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial T s
statements:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
Net assets of Sinopec NewOcean RAETECEEFE - =

Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBERALIIEZ
interest in Sinopec NewOcean G LB - =

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AREBR R A{LFIE 2 s
in Sinopec NewOcean REE - —

Note: Sinopec NewOcean was dissolved in September 2016. Hia A FEE N 2016 £ 9 AR ER o
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21. Interests in Joint Ventures SELERS
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
Cost of unlisted investments in FEEMEERFEREKA
joint ventures
At 1 January w1A1H 23,600 21,332
Share of net profits and other D4k RF i K
comprehensive income for the year HEfh2mEmA 3,160 2,268
At 31 December m12A31H 26,760 23,600

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

Principal
Country of place of Fully paid up
Name of entity registration  operation registered capital
f {.E4 HEfMEX FEEENE CREEMESF
BMNTHIMRAERAR  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000
(“B5#F") (Note a)
BNTRIMAERARE  RE R 2,250,000 A R ¥
([HB%7 1) (fata)
BNERETHRERAR PRC PRC RMB10,000,000
(“B2BE") (Note b)
BMNERETHERERAR HE R 10,000,000 A R
(T8 ) (Hiztn)
Notes:

(@)  The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qing Yuan
Shi Qingxin District Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company
Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the joint venture partner of %7 on 3 November 20086,
the operation of & #1 has been subcontracted to BFY with
a subcontracting period of 8 years until 2015. On 8 June
2015, both parties entered into another agreement to extend
the subcontracting period for another 3 years to 2018. Under
the terms of subcontract agreement, major decisions about
the relevant activities must require unanimous consent by
the Group and the other shareholder. Thus, &% is classified
as joint venture of the Group.

R2017 F K 2016 F12 381 H » A&
BRI TEECEFTEER :

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital held

by the Group Nature of business
FREMFRIBERT
BHmEELLH E£.4:3°1
2017 2016
49% 49%  Sales and
distribution
of LPG
HERDHRILR
30% 30%  Sales and
distribution
of LPG
HERDHRILR
Biat -

@@ AEESEEGEREZENTIEIN
TEE IR K 2 A B B 18 HO T (R 32
BRZBEREESLLOIGTE -

REARABZZ2EREGMBERRFE
mEHRBEFARLETERAA
(MBE=EF]) REH A &R MR 2006
FUABHRI M Z W B 2%
BT EEF - SNHEIE 20165
A H8E - M201546HA8H - &5
BRI A — i IR 3 F 2
20184F - IRBA B 2 15K - BN
HEERBHZBERNRAERFIEAEEK
HMBRR AR - k- Bl
REAEEZEZEDRE -
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21.

Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  50% interests of registered capital of BER% is owned by &
RINEHTERERAF (‘ERINVEEFE") in which 60% of
ownership interests of ER¥TEEF is owned by FIIEH
BRE AR AT a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Thus,
the effective ownership interests of the Group in #E i is 30%
(2016: 30%). Under the terms of memorandum and articles
of association of B2}, major decisions about the relevant
activities must require unanimous consent by the Group
and the other shareholder. Thus, #Ef# is classified as joint
venture of the Group.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interests in joint ventures which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

=&

21.

SELRERE)
Hiet ;- (&)

by ERFESHFEREERAA(ERN
BT )FERES0% HEMER -
M E RS EF60% M ERHANE R
2EHRBZHBRARFINEBREE
RARREE Mt AEEEREE
BEME 2 = A 30% (2016 : 30%) ° 1R
BEBAREZER AR Z IR R
HEESH2EARETSIAEER K
HMRR—BAE - it BRI
EBREBZEEDE -

AEBAERSHEARZAEELER
S BERREHINT - TRMKE
HMESREETEMBEREERNRR
BELEMBMERMIIRZEE -

£

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&IT FET

Current assets MENEE 18,786 16,320

Non-current assets SEMENE E 6,861 7,648

Current liabilities mBEE (978) (365)

Revenue WA 14,197 22,302

Profit for the year F N 126 2,565
Other comprehensive income FREMEERA(ZH)

(expenses) for the year 940 (1,038)

Total comprehensive income for the FAZHEM =BT
year 1,066 1,527
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21. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 21. SELEER &)
I 4 - 4
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Current assets MENBEE 27,218 16,855
Non-current assets EREEE 2,912 4,430
Current liabilities BB E (12,904) (8,247)
Revenue WA 64,720 45,139
Profit for the year F 1A 1 ) 3,268 2,484
Other comprehensive income (expense) 4E A E b 2 E WA (ZH)
for the year 920 (1,008)
Total comprehensive income for the FREEWBEE
year 4,188 1,481
22. Deposits Paid 22, g2ftEe
The amount included deposits of approximately B ERBEEERENREE
RMB205,145,000 (equivalent to approximately B X fff 7 205,145,000 A R # &) % &
HK$244,258,000) (2016: RMB315,671,000, equivalent to (18 & 1 #9 244,258,000 7% 7T ) (2016 :
approximately HK$354,030,000) paid for several potential 315,671,000 R ¥ 8 % 1 &
acquisition of investment projects. The Group has not 354,080,000/ 7T ) ° 742017 & % 2016
entered into any formal sales and purchase agreement as F12A8381 8 AEB W EF(EMIE
at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The remaining amount ANEERZ BREETERREEY
mainly represents the deposits paid for purchase of ¥ BERBHEAZAHRS -

property, plant and equipment.
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23. Inventories

23. #8®

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

LPG RIER 90,263 87,812
Oil products Vi 1,051,717 632,222
Electronic products ETEm 257,700 213,500
1,399,680 933,534

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year amounted to approximately
HK$20,434,255,000 (2016: HK$13,943,529,000).

24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments

FRNAGEBEEREME RS RN
2 17 E KA 49 /520,434,255,00078 7T
(2016 : 13,943,529,000# 7T ) °

24. BRHIRR  BURE HfE
BER - BERAMRE

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Trade debtors U E 5 8RR 3,528,853 3,164,818
Bills receivable R E 46,917 124,492
3,575,770 3,289,310
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 24. BIGEBER - BURIE - HMuE

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. The
bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 days
to 180 days for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date or goods delivery date,
whichever is earlier, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

WRER - BeERWAMRER(E)

AEEBZFHEEHAOK #ZE
20174 K 201612 A31 B L E fE
WEHE 7 FIEBBEHEN T30 XRE180K °
R & HAR 2 FE UL E 5 BR 3k & B W 2= 4%
BRESMIZEZAHKEDRN A A
BEERE)RERABRBE) 27
I

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ETT FHET

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 1,745,451 888,521
31 to 60 days 31 260K 742,273 969,440
61 to 90 days 61 Z 90X 847,797 782,864
91 to 180 days 91 &180K 175,063 441,294
Over 180 days BiE 180K 65,186 207,191
3,575,770 3,289,310

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customers. Recoverability
of the existing customers is reviewed by the Group
regularly. Included in the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable balance are receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,497,342,000
(2016: HK$3,044,859,000), which are neither past due nor
impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$78,428,000 (2016: HK$244,451,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over the balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical default
of payments by the respective customers. The average age
of these receivables is 161 days (2016: 224 days). As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group has no provision for
allowance for doubtful debts.

AEERERT AT S LETEE
ERFZEEEER WK EHEHREES-
AEBETHEMREREF ZERET -
BIREREASEZE S RKERER K EKE
¥ & %93,497,342,00078 7£(2016 :
3,044,859,000/% 70 ) FE W E 5 IR 2 42
HEEHY T2 BHTRE -

AEBZEKWRE SERERBEHR - 8
B ™ (B #78,428,000/% 7L(2016 :
244,451,000 7% 7T ) 2 & W BR ;R R &
HEHBBH  BAEBRNKRIERER
BEE ASBTERFETABERZS
BMRE KIS  BERBARIEREZE
WESERAREEBRARERBE - 3k
AP BEVELRIE - ZE5EK
R 2 FHER#R A 161K(2016 : 224
X) o R2017 FE KX 20164F 12 A31H -
NEBW ERRIEL S o
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24.

25.

Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Aging of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

24.

Rl R SRR - EIRE - HfthfE
WRER - BeERWAMRER(E)

C il FA B K il {5 iz FE U 3R 5 AR ok 35 3 3R
HRZIRES

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET

31 to 60 days 31 60K 11,452 13,007
61 to 90 days 61 = 90K 27,400 31,116
91 to 180 days 91 &180K 14,008 22,768
Over 180 days i@ 180Kk 25,568 177,560
Total aaEr 78,428 244,451

Included in other debtors, deposits and prepayments,
there are trade deposits paid to suppliers of approximately
HK$1,595,746,000 (2016: HK$1,423,804,000) in relation
to the purchase of LPG and oil products which will be
delivered within one year commencing from the date of the
signed purchase contract.

As at 31 December 2017, other debtors included loan
advances to independent third parties of approximately
HK$133,386,000 (2016: HK$154,004,000). The loan
advances are carried at fixed interest rates ranged from
4% to 13% per annum (2016: 4% to 13% per annum) and
repayable within one year.

Amounts due from an Associate and a Joint
Venture

The amounts due from an associate and a joint venture
are in trade nature aged within 90 days based on invoice
date. A credit period of 30 days to 90 days is granted to an
associate and a joint venture. The balances are neither past
due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period.

25.

HEWERR - He RBMNKEFBE
BENHERE SR $ % 1,595,746,000
7 (2016 : 1,423,804,0003 7T ) * 3
FEEREARARTNRRITBELD
B —FRRMT -

M2017E12 A31 B - H ftb fE U BR X
IR T B E = 77 #49133,386,000
7 7£(2016 : 154,004,000 7T ) 2 &
Ko BEFRUNBETEFMENF4%ZE=13%
(2016 : FEHMZE 4% E13%)F L > LR
—FRNEE -

BlR—XBELAFR—KRSELE
R

B —RBE R R —REEDERA
ZESHEREZAMFEZREK R0
RUAR - REE R ERARRTI0RE
ORZIEEH - MBEBNEERRY
REESRIE
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26. FEZERYME

26. Properties Under Development For Sales

HK$’'000
FET

COST BE
At 1 January 2016 R20164F1 8 1H 211,959
Additions NE 199,404
Exchange adjustments PE 5 AR (22,698)
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 388,665
Additions NE 241,269
Exchange adjustments M W SR 23,962
At 31 December 2017 R20174 12 A31 H 653,896

27.

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 16. All the
properties under development for sales are not expected
to be realised within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The properties under development for
sales are situated in the PRC.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans, and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits carried at fixed interest rates of 0.30% (2016:
0.30%) per annum and will be released upon settlement of
the relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.001% to 3.51% (2016: 0.01% to 3.80%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,169,678,000 (2016: HK$1,342,656,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible into
other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged bank
deposits and bank balances, there are approximately
HK$59,666,000 (2016: HK$5,021,000) denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”)/HK$ and approximately
HK$56,907,000 (2016: HK$5,771,000) denominated in
RMB, which are not the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities.

27.

AEBEERERZIHZ —YABFED
X ot FHIFHNME16 - AR
EERRTHEARI I ERERRER
12EARER - FEERTVEZKE
BURTEZ L -

EERRITER BITRBERS

ZREEEETIRITIEARNEBERR
TEEZERZTFR - ZEFRBEIF
ERRIBRITERZER  HoBEAR
FEE - BIMTFRITERIREEF X
0.30% (2016 : 0.30%) T8 @ WENAE
BIRTTIE B E R AERR -

iR 1T & 8 & N F0.001%£3.51%
(2016 : 0.01% £ 3.80%) Z 1 45 F F| &
e e

gl /&

R2017E12 8318 EEARITF
R ERAT 45 84 K3 € #91,169,678,000
7 7C(2016 : 1,342,656,00078 7T ) A A
REEE WA BhREHAHME
B AEEZERBRITFREET
4= 8 o #959,666,00078 JT(2016 :
5,021,000 7t ) M= TlE T | /5
JC E 18 © 456,907,000 JT(2016 :
5,771,000 7)) BILAARBEERE - £
SABTTRARETIERBEETE 2
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28. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable 28. EFEZERREMSRE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Trade creditors e 8 5 BRK 879,232 667,521
Bills payable B EE 406,294 932,435
1,285,526 1,599,956
The aged analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as BB SRR ENEE 7 RS TiR
follows presented based on invoice date: HELQHZ5MT ¢
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
0 to 30 days 0&E 30K 923,192 600,476
31 to 60 days 31 260K 177,207 605,781
61 to 90 days 61 290K 154,857 321,186
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 8,555 51,970
Over 180 days i 180 K 21,715 20,543
1,285,526 1,699,956
Included in other creditors and accrued charges, there are EmENEREEGFEZRAS, &
trade deposits received from customers of approximately 133,086,000/% J£(2016 : 256,866,000
HK$133,036,000 (2016: HK$256,866,000) in relation to BIT) BRI P EE BEE RIER K
the sales of LPG and oil products. The remaining balances MEME SRS  SREFERKEME
mainly represented the other tax payable, construction NHE - BNRERBERA T EEKAN
payable and amounts outstanding for daily operating costs. MR EEE °
Included in the Group’s trade creditors, creditors of K & ZEME S5 EBERHPYH
approximately HK$169,047,000 (2016: HK$116,442,000) 169,047,000 7t (2016 : 116,442,000
are denominated in USD, which is not the functional BIL)ARETLTEE  ETWUIFHBEEE

= gen Ak A

currency of the relevant group entities. BB EE o
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29. Amounts Due to an Associate and a Joint 29. EfF—FKHELTDR—RESELE
Venture L]
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable CHAERR B RAREKREE -
on demand.
30. Borrowings 30. f&®
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FETL
Bank trust receipts loans IRITEFRBIEB R 2,112,133 1,292,488
Other loans (pledged with RMB bank HA AR (AA RERITIER
deposits) YEHE ) 235,610 108,920
Other loans (pledged with other assets) E &5k
(AR A EEEEAR) 49,657 52,989
Other loans H A fER 2,949,986 2,838,144
5,347,386 4,292,541
Repayable within one year shown under RENEEE FFRBER —F
current liabilities NEE
Borrowings secured by pledged bank B 3ERIR1TIF RERD
deposits EEN 235,610 108,920
Borrowings secured by other assets H i B EEIRAME R 18,364 15,560
Borrowings unsecured EERAE K 3,709,829 1,930,837
3,963,803 2,055,317
Repayable over one year shown under  3EREIEEIE FFIRAR
non-current liabilities —FREE
Borrowing secured — more than one EERNER — BiR—F
year, but not exceeding two years B Z R ME 15,090 15,688
Borrowing unsecured — more than EIERAER — BB —F
one year, but not exceeding two BARZRME
years 418,690 990,005
Borrowings secured — more than two ~ BERMER — BBEME
years, but not exceeding five years BAZRAF 16,203 21,741
Borrowings unsecured — more than EIERAER — BBRF
two years, but not exceeding five BETNZRALFE
years 933,600 1,209,790
1,383,583 2,237,224

5,347,386 4,292,541
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30. Borrowings (Continued) 30. E®m(E)
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$418,192,000 (2016: R 17 f& X B #49418,192,000/8 Tt
HK$325,415,000) carry at fixed-rate. The remaining bank (2016 : 325,415,000 70 ) BE B ° &
borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry annual TRITERBZBBER  FAER1E
interest rate at 1 month to 3 months London Interbank AZ3EAMRBBITREREME TE
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus certain basis points or Hong B BIRITRIZER S NG TEE -
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus certain basis
points.
As at 31 December 2017, other loans of approximately MN2017512 8318 H b £ & 4
HK$49,657,000 (2016: HK$52,989,000) are secured by 49,657,000/ t(2016 : 52,989,000/8
four (2016: three) oil vessels owned by the Group with TC) AN £ [E #3575 BRE (B 4 148,262,000
carrying value of approximately HK$148,262,000 (2016: 7 7e(2016 : 118,819,000 7T ) Hy 42
HK$118,819,000) and guaranteed by the Company. (2016 : 3#8 )M TEHRIRI AN A RIVEHE
Included in total borrowings of the Group, approximately fR o ANEE[E 7 B RN 4EFE495,155,739,000
HK$5,155,739,000 (2016: HK$3,969,706,000) is 7 7(2016 : 3,969,706,0008 7T ) B &R
guaranteed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries. NEVN HEHE QB ER -
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal AEEBHRZEBENEGEE R & QN
to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are K)SHEMT -
as follows:
2017 2016

Effective interest rate: ERFIE

Fixed-rate borrowings E BN 217% to£3.35%  1.36% to £ 4.44%

Variable-rate borrowings FEBR 0.88% to £5.07%  0.51% to£4.21%
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies AEBZEFAFREEEEENEE
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant M EMEE  HIWT

group entities are set out below:

USD/HK$
o,/ BT

HK$’000
FET

As at 31 December 2017 M2017412 A31 H 2,544,046
As at 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 2,435,140
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31. Share Capital 31. BX
Number of
shares
B8
HK$’000
FEIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEO0.1 8T 2 Bk
(2016: HK$0.1 each) (2016 : BA%0.1%E7T)
Authorised share capital: EERA
At 1 January 2016, 31 December R20164%F1 H18 20164
2016 and 2017 K 2017412 A31 H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BEITRBERAE
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December ®201641A18 2016
2016 F12 A31 H 1,480,398,216 148,040
Less: Repurchase of shares (Note) S8 BRD EBE (AT L) (7,368,000) (737)
At 31 December 2017 R20174F 12 A31 H 1,473,030,216 147,303
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company Kiat :R2017F12A31 A EFER - XA
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as AE AR ARG - FIEWT ¢
follows:

Aggregate

consideration

No. of paid

ordinary Price per share (excluding

Month of share of SRES transaction
repurchase HK$0.10 Highest Lowest costs)
Eft KR

0.1#ETZ (FBEXS

BfA 7 EER#A B¥)
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT BT FBT

March 2017 2017F3 A 4,674,000 2.49 2.34 11,216
April 2017 2017 %4 A 1,440,000 2.40 2.32 3,401
August 2017 201748 A 1,254,000 2.20 2.14 2,730

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. i B BB BT o
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32. Deferred Taxation

32. REME

TE-LEER

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior year:

RENRBESRERT  AEEDRR
CEXEERBABCEE) RIEWE
mF -

Accelerated Other

tax intangible

depreciation Tax losses assets

mERFITE REGR HURPEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TFET T T
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1H1H8 48,091 (3,197) 67,921 112,815

(Credit) charge to profit/loss for RERIEZ (AR

the year B (2,708) 2,859 (6,089) (5,938)
Exchange adjustments P& I R (2,958) (14) (4,401) (7,373)
At 31 December 2016 1 2016F 12 431 H 42,425 (352) 57,431 99,504
Credit to profit/loss for the year RFERIEZ AR (9,919) (1,885) (5,952) (17,756)
Exchange adjustments ERTEEE: 5,594 284 3,346 9,224
At 31 December 2017 R2017% 12 31 H 38,100 (1,953) 54,825 90,972

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

AT RIEMBGE2RM T 2 ELERBE
DT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Deferred tax assets RIETR TS B E 1,953 352
Deferred tax liabilities R EE (92,925) (99,856)
(90,972) (99,504)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$324,941,000
(2016: HK$263,513,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$7,812,000 (2016: HK$1,408,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$317,129,000
(2016: HK$262,105,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$3,312,000 (2016: HK$3,163,000) will be
expired before year 2020 (2016: year 2019). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

RERBR - ANEE G HIEH
ARG 2 ABDEAREBBEEDO A
324,941,000 7t (2016 : 263,513,000
BIT) ° BELAY 7,812,000 75(2016 :
1,408,000 7T ) ERIRLEH S EE © i
B 1% 25 FI SRS ATER - B R
& T 4% 82 #9317,129,000 7% 7T (2016 :
262,105,000 7T ) iERIELEF IS B E ©
493,312,000/ 7t(2016 : 3,163,000
B TT ) 2 K FE R B TE B 18 18 10 2020 F
(2016 : 20194 ) B HA s  H fib /&5 8 B
A] 4R HR AL 2 o
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32.

33.

Deferred Taxation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$58,504,000 in
respect of mainly accelerated accounting depreciation. No
deferred tax asset had been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it was not probable
that taxable profit would be available against which the
deductible temporary differences could be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$762,680,000 (2016: HK$705,423,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 15 December 2017, Sound Hong Kong Limited (“Sound
Hong Kong”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which an independent third
party agreed to sell, and Sound Hong Kong agreed to
purchase, 51% of the equity interests in Quitman Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The remaining
49% equity interest of Quitman Limited is owned by an
independent third party. Quitman Limited is an investment
holding company and it has two wholly owned subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, Sino Ray Investment Limited
and Forever Hero Limited (together are referred to as
“Quitman Group”). The acquisition was completed on 29
December 2017.

The principle activities of Quitman Group are the sale and
distribution of oil products in Hong Kong and it owns 17
oil trucks for providing oil transportation services to third
parties and Quitman Group in Hong Kong. After completion
of the acquisition, the Group has widen its customer basis
in Hong Kong not only marine oil customers but also further
extend the market coverage on land automotive customers.
The consideration for the acquisition was HK$80,000,000.

32.

33.

BRI (2)

MR2016F12A81H BEEMES:
WEF  ASEBEFANFHERERELY
58,504,000/ 7T ° AR AR B /] I A 7]
M TR =R AKE AR IR 2 BRT
EF 2 ATRE MK - WU 4 L 5% S AT 40
RERE=ERERECHBEE -

RIEFRBIFTE L - 200841 A 18
#E o R BB B A B BT BRE 2 i B i =
K2R BEBSEN - NERE W&
REFATENBARZ2:FEF 2
I 22 %8 762,680,000 TT(2016 4F
705,428,000 & 70 ) IR AR & B 15 2k W ET
RIEEFR SR - TR AL B Al
b TRk P i I N =2
A RE TN FAR] B & 2k e o

KRR E AR

R2017FE12 A156H * " QA 8 — B R
TEEXS((RBREALS DKM - I
2EREZHNBAREEEERARF
([FaaE)ET—HhEERZE(ER
WEl) o Bt —BBUFE=FRELD
€ EEBRAZBEAREBKILHNX
EHRARS1% 2 BiEkE - XEFR
DAl EBr40% RS R — B H
=R  XEARARAKEZRA
A BEMBEREBRINEEERM
BAR  MEKREBRAGREGERR
RE(RBAIESE]) - ZIEWER
201712 A 29 HZE/ °

XESEETEXHER/NEBBHE D H
Han o HBEG 17 HERE =7 MXE
SEEFSREAMERRS - NKE
TR ARBETERAKEFTENEP
it TMERRBLLMMEP - B
FPRRAELLAERFPFNMEEEHRE -
%AW R 2 {873 80,000,000 & 7T °
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. KBMELARZ)
The acquisition of Quitman Group had the following effect WETEEEHAEBNEENEBEZ
on the Group’s assets and liabilities: BT
Net assets acquired: FTiSEEFE:
HK$°000
FET
Non-current asset IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment YZE - WS R 2,388
Current assets B EE
Trade debtors FEUE 5 BR X 13,816
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment EMEUERR « e MFEN I8 22,386
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR NS 11,101
47,303
Current liabilities REEE
Trade creditors FERTE SRR 23,220
Other creditors and accrued charges HEMEMERRRERTE A 8,553
Amount due to a former shareholder (Note) FERN FRIIRER 2 ZRIB (A7 7F) 50,359
82,132
Net liabilities at the date of acquisition WERFAE (32,441)
Note: The amount due to a former shareholder was fully settled in Kt R2018E2 BE MBI R 2 E(EE R
February 2018. T o
The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade RUEE B A A F1{E 36,202,000 7 7T 44 i
debtors, other debtors, deposits and prepayment) with a MEKZRB(TERIEREIRE SRR -
fair value of HK$36,202,000 at the date of acquisition had HipE R IS RTENKIBE)E 4
gross contractual amounts of HK$36,202,000. The best #2585 36,202,000 7T » FRAULEE B #5178
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows SHEEWE NS AR RN REGTA

not expected to be collected amounted to HK$nil. 0BT °
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

33. IMMELAT(E)

Gooduwill arising on acquisition: WS IRy B2 AE 2 PR
HK$’000
TFET
Total consideration BRE 80,000
Net liabilities assumed EEFAE 32,441
Less: Non-controlling interest OB SRR (15,896)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHERFE £ 2 8 96,545

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (49%) in Quitman Group
recognised at the acquisition date was measured by
reference to the proportionate share of recognised amounts
of net liabilities of Quitman Group and amounted to
HK$15,896,000.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

BRI R BE L 2 BT A HRHK
%%O

FRIE B R
SCEE S5 B UK 8 B WERR A 49% FE 12 1

HO2ENEEECRRBGEFENIR
Bl 1D 5851 £ & 15,896,000/8 7T ©

WIBREL 2 RERHFER

HK$’000

FAET

Consideration paid in cash NEReS M ZRE 80,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances R ERREAERIBRSIAR B

acquired (11,101)

68,899
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33.

34.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group

The goodwill arose on the acquisition was attributable
to the benefits of expected synergies of two oil products
customers network in Hong Kong that developed by the
Group and Quitman Group, revenue and future market
development of Quitman Group. These benefits were not
recognised separately from goodwill because they did
not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
significant contribution in revenue and profit by Quitman
Group to the Group because the acquisition was
completed closed to the end of the year 2017. Had these
business combination been completed at 1 January 2017,
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$22,732,968,000 and the profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$839,431,000. The directors
considered these ‘proforma’ number to represent an
approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference
point for comparison in future periods.

Acquisition of Intangible Assets Through
Purchase of Subsidiaries

On 15 November 2016, 18 B B &R EEGRE A A (‘NBIC”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“the Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which an independent
third party agreed to sell, and NBIC agreed to purchase,
the entire equity interests in #& M 1 4l R £ %) & & R &t
RABERARF and BMNTEEREZEABR A F (“Charcoal
Manufacturing Companies”), companies incorporated in
the PRC (the “Acquisition”). The Charcoal Manufacturing
Companies mainly owned a technical know-how in respect
of a set of self developed machineries for manufacturing of
charcoals. The Acquisition was completed on 15 December
2016. The Charcoal Manufacturing Companies had not yet
commenced business at the date of acquisition.

The consideration for the Acquisition was RMB90,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$101,540,000).

33.

34.

BB AT (&)
BMHERERBRZE

WEBE £ MRE YR RN A& B H X E
SEEROMEFTEHREFOHRBAG
Rl R e - I S M O i es o R 2R T 35 3%
RE - HRNZFN e REEZED R DA
BB BEZ G RS TEREA
B RIHER ©

HEZ2017F12A31BIEEE - AR
W B EEHER T 2017 E R A 2R © X [E
SRV ARAAEBFTRERANKA R
FEER - MEZZEREHR2017
F1RA1IBER AEENKAL A
22,732,968,000 87T + &F Nim A4 5
839,431,000 TC - EERAZEHE
HFIREZEHEENFEREMR KB
REOOETE - WA RBABRESZE
LAVELLES o

EEMANRE LTI BER T E

R2016FE11 A16H B A B 1%
EERAREEAEREDET—H
BEEBZ(EEHZE]) - Bt — B
FZFRELERBEFREREEA
FAHR BB S22 4B N T LR A2 M) B AR TR L
AR A F RAB M T iAW R E R R A
AINRKREENR ) 22 BEE(IK
Bl ZAREEQAREEHREF—E£H
77 7 2 MO AR B 0T A0 SR A A E AR IR © 5%
HWEE R 2016 F 12 A 15 HEMK ° /K
RBEN R A UREE B AR FAIA = % o

=% T8 W BE 7 X {8 590,000,000 A R #&
(A& #7101,540,00047T) °
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34. Acquisition of Intangible Assets Through 34. BBABMAMBATNEELSE
Purchase of Subsidiaries (Continued) (%)

WA BRBEARIERRINELE
EREABEzBBEMETEE -

The Acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition of
intangible assets and the associated liabilities and other
assets of the Charcoal Manufacturing Companies:

Net assets acquired: RIS EEFE -
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets FEME B E
Property, plant and equipment VI - 2R REsE 537
Intangible assets EmREE 99,880
100,417
Current assets B EE
Inventories 55 63
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HEMEKERR « & KA KIE 1,482
Bank balances and cash IRTTEH RS 825
2,370
Current liabilities BB &
Other creditors and accrued charges H SRR ERE A 1,247
Net assets at Acquisition Date WEERFEE 101,540
Satisfied by: ATF A A -
Cash consideration RERE 101,540
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ERHeRESERER (825)
Net outflow cash and cash equivalents in respect WEEAKEE AT ZIHE RIBEZR
of the Acquisition of Charcoal Manufacturing HE R FEE
Companies 100,715
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35. REEARETERMBIA

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
reserves, which includes the borrowings as disclosed in
note 30, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, share premium, reserves
and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.

Categories of financial instruments

2017 2016

REERER

AEET EAEREBRERAEER
SEBBTURESAEE  FEE
BT E R BRI SEEARRE RS
KESH - ARE Y BBEHE FEER
R -

AEBEEARBETRERAR R
RIEOREZER) RARBHEEA
AEEHEE(BRDHEITERA - B4
B - FEERAREREN)FTAER

AEBERERFIRESKNAREER
ERZRARFERNEARE - A&E
REBBITH - XIS RIEINERTT
ERKEERE ZRITEFTAFEHEE
BEARE -

FRAEE R RIETE -

MBEIRZER

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FETT FET
Financial assets MBEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash Bz & EW A (B FER &
and cash equivalents) ;ERIRESER) 5,972,809 5,532,556
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 15,012 45
Financial liabilities MEAR
Amortised cost BESHR AR 6,907,775 6,102,953
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKITA 7,861 1,961
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35. REAREERMBIA(E)

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade debtors
and bills receivable, other debtors, deposits, amount
due from (to) an associate, amount due from (to) a joint
venture, trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, borrowings and derivative financial
instruments. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade debtors,
trade creditors, bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies as disclosed in
notes 27, 28 and 30 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

MERREEARRBE

AEBEZIENBITABERITERR
B BERRTER  BEESER
REWERE EMERERR - ZE &
W, — KB R R RRIAE - B —
REEDENE  BNESRAREN
R RN RAREER - 55K
ROTEMB TR - ZEMBTAZHE
REMERE - TXEINEZFRHT
BEAR < Bk K an a] 2K % 3 Rl 2 B
R-BEBEEREZEZSRAR - AW
R R B M B RO RBUE S 2 fE i

mGmEE
() EEER

ARARETHIBARE AINERHE
BB SAEBEAIINERR o
AEEETRERKESRER  ENZ
SEN - BITEKKIES - BEE
RITER R - AINEEB (G
B E 5 B R K E27 28 X 30

&) -

AEBINESIECEREERE
BRERERARZEDEDNT

Assets Liabilities
"E ]
2017 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FRETT FAET TFAET FET
USD I 59,666 5,021 2,713,093 2,651,682

RMB AR 56,907 5,771 = —
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. BEFXRARETEERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continueqd) mEmEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEE(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has outstanding R2017F12H831H BRRE &
derivative contracts with an aggregate notional 4 %E#9155,000,000 % JT Z M AR 4
amount of approximately USD155,000,000 for HK$ &% t(2016 : 5,028,000 T Z
(2016: USD5,028,000 for HK$) and approximately MAGEEBIT) X4 11,826,000
USD11,826,000 for RMB (2016: nil). The details of the T2 AREEANRE(2016 - &)
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note ZRERHEED c (TEMBEI A
44, FFIBE M FE 44 55 -
In addition, a number of subsidiaries of the Company SN - RABBEEIAET, BT
with functional currency of USD/HK$ have intergroup BN EE 2B AR @ HEBEM
balances that are denominated in RMB or vice visa, EHRUARBSENRESEE £

which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. REBASINERER o
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the currency risk is mainly arising from exchange USD
against RMB or RMB against USD. The following
table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in USD against RMB and a 5% increase
and decrease in the RMB/USD spot rate and forward
exchange rate. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
the RMB/USD exchange rate and the RMB/USD
forward exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis below
did not include the derivative contracts of USD for
HK$ as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 because
the management expected any reasonable possible
change in the USD/HK$ forward exchange rate would
be immaterial. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and derivative financial instruments and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates or their
fair value at the end of the reporting period for a
5% change in forward exchange rate. For monetary
assets and liabilities, positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen
5% against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be negative. For derivative financial
instruments, a negative number below indicates an
decrease in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen
5% against USD/HKD. For a 5% weakening of RMB
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be positive.

35. REAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)

()

E¥mE (&)
BURRE DM

RRB T 2 EREETTHE - B
REFEREETLIARERAR
B HETT o TREFJIASEEET
HARE EFARTES% RARK
SETREERRPER FAKT
BR5% 2 HEEE - 5% RERERE
HARE ETERRARE, =
ToiR BfE R 2 S IR Rl ge BT o
AR EEEBHET, BrRE
KB EEEHERT - BIA
TRBRRE DT R BIE A B LA
B2 ETLRERBEHNR2017F
201612 A31H - R E &
MEBEAEE Z AINET|ETEE
MOTERB TR : WH23RERY
HinE e 5% [EREH) 2 FHE -
SR ERBREEAFEELS%
RHEREY 2L REMEE
kafEms WARBREET L
F+5% Bl N EHRRG R IE%HE
M - WARBHBBER K
5%  Ale ¥ nfEAEEERER
22 BUTHEBKBRAZ -3
TEMBTAMmMS @ WMARBEEE
T BT EF5% 0 Blan N8 HXR
TREEERRD - MARER A
BEBTKSY%  AlgsafEE
HERBRZZE - HUATEH#
BIEH -
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

35. REAREERMBIA(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD against RMB impact

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)
() EEERZE)
BREDWT(E)

RMB impact USD impact

ETRARREE ARRRETHE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FEIT F&IT FET
Increase in profit for the 4 A% A3 hn
year (Note) (Htaz)
— monetary assets — EREER
and liabilities BfE 110,293 105,830 2,394 249
— derivative financial — TTEYH
instruments ITA — 70 —

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on bank balances, payables and borrowings
denominated in USD or RMB and derivative financial
instruments as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD/HK$ against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
on intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used by the management in the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
intra group balance denominated in RMB between
subsidiaries of the Group and adjusts its translation
at the year end for a 5% change in RMB rates. A
positive number below indicates increase in post-tax
profit for the year where RMB strengthens 5% against
USD/HKS.

Wit - EEBRNFRBELRARSE
EBZAREERTHELR  EBAK
R RAEFIA BT 76 T AR
Z B o

HAEE 2 KERBSRERR 2N
REmE - FRFHET/ BRI
AR EARTES% 2 BREE -
5% RERENHERGEAEE
BERZHRELEX - HRESN
EEERAKENBRRZEIAR
BEBEBZREERKESE  ANF
REEBBEEL 6% ARBERE
BoRE - MARKEET BT
E75% - Rl T ESKR T F Ak
P&t MR A0 o
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD/HK$, there

would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax profit for the year below:

35. REAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBEZ)

mEmeE (&)

()

B (&)
BREDT(E)
MARBEEL, BT TEES -

IR 110 T 48 (OB 114 i L2 A4
SRIBRZHE

2017 2016

Increase (decrease) in post-tax
profit for the year

(R2)

FABR B &4 M8 hn

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
22,134 (31,789)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank
loans which charge interest at prevailing market
rates. In addition, the Group has exposure to fair
value interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the loan receivable included in other
debtors exposed to fair value interest rate risk as
the loan receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate borrowings (see note 30 for details of these
borrowings), loan receivable included in other debtors
(see note 24 for details of these loans receivable) and
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and receive floating interest rate swaps (see note 44
for details of these derivative financial instruments).
The purpose of the Group to enter non deliverable
Ccross currency interest swap is to reduce the cash
flow interest rate risk but does not fulfill the hedge
accounting requirement.

In the opinion of management of the Group, the
expected change in interest rate will not have
significant impact on the interest income on bank
balances, hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.

(i)

EEER S - HRNFRARLETR
BRERNZER - MBRESTILA
REREEINERR -

T & E

H LAZR 1T 35 F R 51 B2 )% BIRTT
BERZMEHEEE - NEB 2R
TEFREEESRENERE ° It
G o F 2R PR E BB IRIR 1T
RRERERTE B AEET
AMEE N FEFERR - K2017
FN2016F12A31H > AR E
WERIZETEFETE - EtAE
1 JIE W BR 53R 2 B UK & 3R R 5 A
BN ERR - AEBEZAFERN =
BBREBFRTEBEBR(ZERBRK
2B AHMEES0) C sTAHEME
WERF 2 EWER(ZEEKRER
ZitEm R 24) ROTEME T
A BEEEIRFBWEEH
(ZETEMB TR ZFHIBHERM
FE44) o NEEFT I REIR X FE
EHZBREREREREFER
B B AFEEPSETEK -

AEEERE/AA  BOHEEY
BRI RO TI SR AR E
KB - B2 5B A -
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
LIBOR and HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable-
rate borrowings and partially set off by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and receive
floating interest rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would decrease/increase by HK$19,605,000 (2016:
HK$16,400,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments that pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps.

35. REAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)

(i)

AEEZHBRENRRERFEHR
RAMERBE SRR EE &
AEBEZRERENERARERE
PRAKEE S ERELZ REUR
TRAEFELRBBRITAERE
KB WHWITEMBTA(BEE
B A RO B ME S B 3K -

BURE DT

SA T SURE 24 T 1R0% BAB TN &
R (TEEEITEN B TA(BRE
ERXMRFSMEURH) HiE 2
RITEKER)EE - 2T IHERR
RERPRREBEZEHEERE
FHREEMEL - 0EERZ
BRAKREEBHN R 2 A E AL
B EH 2T -

il AR 50 EE 28 B A H
A BEEEFTE  NEEEH
ZE2017F 12831 B IEFE 2%
F 15 8 A 18 119,605,000 7 T
(2016 : 16,400,000 7T ) * &£
TEHARANER 2T BRITIE R E L
FERBR(TNEEFRITEMF IR
(BIEE B % B YEE 5 ) 1K
$H 7 SRITIERARR) ©
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has
significant concentration risk on certain customers and the
loan advance to several entities.

As at 31 December 2017, the top ten largest trade debtors
amounted to approximately HK$2,680,604,000 (2016:
HK$2,679,749,000) and comprised around 76.0% (2016:
84.7%) of the Group’s trade debtors. The following table
shows the analysis of the top ten largest trade debtors by
their business nature and location etc.:

BE2017F 12 431 AIEFE

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. BEFXRARETEERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Credit risk EEmE

R2017F12A31H B HTEITE
EMEAEESIUBBIZESREE
ERR R A S BRERE T AR R RS 2
ERRAVEEEZREE ~AEEE—
EERASRRELIRHCER A
BAZERRR -

R2017F12 8318 © B 10 & KN JE
B 5 Bk 3K 4 5 2,680,604,000% 7T
(2016 : 2,679,749,0005 7T ) - 1§ &
SEMNEWRE SRR 76.0% (2016 :
84.7%) c NERBABE 10U EWE 5K
SROAFL TS\ R 2 DA -

Customers included in the top ten
individual largest trade debtors

AREETUENRABURAERZER

Number

2017 2016

% of the total trade debtors

Locations

AELRARRESL BE

2017 2016 2017 and & 2016

Sales of LPG HERILR 4 4 28.1 302 PRC, Thailand, HK
and others
HE - RE - FERAM
Sales of oll products HERM 5 6 4.7 54.5 PRC, Thailand, HK
and others
HE - RE - FERAM
Sales of electronic products ~ HEZTFER 1 — 6.2 = Thailand &
10 10 76.0 84.7
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. BEFXRARETEERMBIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the customers of the Group are large wholesales,
trading or shipping companies in the PRC, Thailand, Hong
Kong or overseas. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible to implement
credit monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtors, other debtors and deposits at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale and distribution of LPG
and oil products and thus exposed to the risk arising from
the fluctuation of the commodities price in the market.
The Group entered into a number of commodities swap
contracts during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 to reduce the commodities price risk. As at 31
December 2017, the Group has outstanding commodities
swap contracts for LPG and oil products with aggregate
notional amounts of approximately USD35,013,000
(2016: commodities swap contracts for oil products
with aggregate notional amounts of approximately
USD3,009,000) respectively. The details of these derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in note 44.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the outstanding commodities swap contracts as at 31
December 2017. If the prices of LPG and oil had been 5%
higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$11,373,000 (2016:
HK$977,000) as a result of changes in fair value of the
commodities swap contracts.

MERREEARRBE(E)

ERmAE(E)

AEERFNEFPR/TE  FEH - FE
NAgIMLEE - BHIMBRF - BHRE
EERR AEEERERERTEER
EEER - URERRBURETERKD
BHRK - BF - AREEZHRYK
o hlies R 2 BUE SRR - Hib
FEMRA R IR 2 AT W BB - PARE(R
RES AT RENE 2 SIRME L R S 2 (B
BB -

HRXZHF 1 REREEFREERT
ERBEENRZRT WRBESLZ
FERBRAR -

EEmAE

AEBMESHREHE MY HRIEA KX
M Rt EAEATISAMAEREEM
EXZRRB - & E22017F k20164
12A31BILEFE  AEEEFLET
A miE A AU KR mERERR o K
2017 12H31H ARRBESHEN
35,013,000 FE L R(L & Kl G i R A E
ZRAmBEHEA4(2016 : BEESED
3,009,000 Dl m L mEHE L)) °
ZETEP BT A ZFBERMFE 44 5

?go

BB T

T X Pt 2 BURE o i TR R K 2017
F12A8IA A MR BHAENET -
WEBREREARZE®S LA TK
5% @ ANEBFR 2 &R RSN,
4> #711,373,000 7% 7£(2016 : 977,000
BIn) I EREREREN 2 AT
BEEFTEL -
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35. REAREERMBIA(E)

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has undrawn short
term borrowing facilities amounting to approximately
HK$7,133,084,000 (2016: HK$6,133,322,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash (inflows) outflows on derivative instruments that
settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed,
the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
is prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considers that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

MERREEARRBE(E)

oA kg4

EEBRDECRERE  AEEEER
REEEBRREAZASIERRAS
BEZE UALKE XKL ERM
BeWRERERERB2TE - BR
BEEEIRTTIE R 2 A BN KRBT
fERRL) -

MR2017F12 A31 H » AEE 7 KR
5 HA{E SR = B 49 4 7,133,084,000 7 7T
(2016 : 6,133,322,000787T) °

TRANRNEEFITEMBREZIHRT
BHRZEMBR - TROLERAEER
AEEVMBREZEFARZAITRR
EREMBRE - TREFBMNERAEZ
RERE - Wi SRER TN R
B ARBRBEESBRAZRARZ M EHE
=

s TRFAFINAREBIOTEMB LA
RBETDN - FREREBENFESLEE
ZMMETARMBEAHRERFER
B BRMNFAALFEER AIRES
HMO2EN2BRPRZKREHRFA2H
ZEMMEREE - AKEITEMBITA
ZRBEEOMHRBENOIHER
2 RAREEERSEOIHALIE
BTETAZREREZHHEZHE
Eo
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. REXEBREERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RHELmE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table BB RFIEERx
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective undiscounted 31 December
interest rate ithi Over 2 years to cash flows 2017
miEFs 1 year 5 years @XER  R2017F128
ERf® 1£0L 25E5% ReRE S1ACKEE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
% FET FET FET FET FET
2017 2017
Non-derivative financial FITEHBAR
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills ER2 S5k
payable eSS - 1,285,526 - - 1,285,526 1,285,526
Other creditors HEfEME - 364,602 - - 364,602 364,602
Amount due to a joint EN-FaEtE
venture i\ - 3,096 - - 3,096 3,096
Fixed interest rates TEER
borrowings 2.94 420,149 - - 420,149 418,192
Variable interest rate FEEH
borrowings 4,26 3,634,866 483,970 976,849 5,095,685 4,929,194
5,708,239 483,970 076849 7,169058 7,000,610
Derivatives — net settlement #7142 — £EFE
Commodities swaps EREHEORA
contracts inflow - (390) - - (390) (390)
Non-deliverable cross FRERNEE
currency interest swap flEEEAL
contracts inflow RA - (2,468) (2,468) (1,848) (6,784) (6,784)

Foreign exchange option ~ SMEHIEA AT H
contracts outflow - 23 - - 23 23
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. BEFXRARETEERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RHELmE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued) THBE L RFIEE L (E)

Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective undiscounted 31 December

interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows 2016
MEFH 1 year 1 year 5 years BREH  R2016512 7
ERA% 1R TENE 26%5% Beng S1HZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET FET TAT T TAT
2016 2016
Non-derivative financial FTERBEE
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills ER2 S5k
payable eSS = 1,599,956 = = 1,599,956 1,599,956
Other creditors HEfEME - 225,502 - - 225,502 225,502
Amount due to an EN—ZHENT
associate LHE = 13,819 - - 13,819 13,819
Amount due to a joint ER-ZEE0E
venture | - 2916 - - 2,916 2,916
Fixed interest rates EEEH
borrowings 3.07 251,006 78,616 - 329,622 325,415
Variable interest rate FEEH
borrowings 3.37 1,902,744 998,188 1,297,949 4,198,881 3,967,126

3,995,943 1,076,804 1,297,949 6,370,696 6,134,734

Derivatives — net settlement  $74T A - £EFE

Interest rate swaps outfow ~ FI=EER - 2% - - 2 26
Commodities swaps faliagkichiokn
outflow - 1,935 - - 1,935 1,935
Derivatives — gross TETA - BEBR
settlement
Derivatives forward outflow — $TEEER M = 38,942 - - 38,942 38,942
Deliverable forward inflow ~ $74&ERA - (38,987) - - (38,987) (38,987)
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis and/or
dealer quotes for similar instruments.

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

o the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis are further set out in note 46.

35.

REAREERMBIA(E)

AFE

MBEERMBABZRAFEDRTR
Renegnomk SRAETABKRE
REAREERAETE °

o I

i)
T~
B8

REGRRRAR LR R B T
SEB M BEEZ A TEZEM
BMEEEMERE : &

e PITAEMBIARFEIIEAKIRE
B OSFRDENTA T A2 HIRE
BZWERMRETE - M ADEITA
TRAAREEERNGTE -

EER/REEUBHRRPIZEHRA
LRZHMBEERM KRB ZRE(ER
HRFERE -

USRI RN AT E B2 B TA
2 AT ERH BB — S RN 46 -

1157
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36. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 36. METHEEZCARYIE
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAEAEEMERTHELEZEEED
arising from financing activities, including both cash 5 BIEIRESNRIERSEHE - gER
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing HELEZEBENRREREIARERE S
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future MERASEGERERERDPEAR
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BEFIRESRE ©
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METBHEEZARYHIR
activities

Interest

payable

(included in

Borrowings other payable)

i dngil)-S

(BREEAM

&= FEftREH)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 818 4,292,541 9,256 4,301,797
Financing cash flows BERER 1,053,966 (197,063) 856,903

Non-cash changes HBEEE

Foreign currency translation INE]E 879 - 879
Interest expense FlEXH - 198,750 198,750

At 31 December 2017 R2017612A31H 5,347,386 10,943 5,358,329
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37. Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

38. Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for offices, oil vessels,
leasehold land and LPG gas stations which fall due as
follows:

37. BARAR

R2017 F K 2016 F 1231 H » A&
Bl EERKARBE -

38. HEXiE
FREESEEA
REBHR - AEBERBE A HHELE
WMAE s BEI M RAR(ERUEE

MAXNzARELEESXH - FIHA
L

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Within one year —F R 31,389 37,426
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERAFHN(BEEEMRT) 72,123 59,197
Over five years BiERF 95,648 60,322
199,160 156,945

As at 31 December 2017, rentals are fixed for an average
of 6 years (2016: 5 years).

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted for the following future minimum lease
payments for the office premises, leasehold, oil vessels and

MN2017E12 A31 8 - HEETEHTH
BBEE(2016 : 54F) °

FREMERSHEA
RBEHR - AEEERUTYE - B

E mmkREZRARRIEEHA
#

warehouses.
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 10,604 2,377
In the second to fifth year inclusive EERFRN(RREEEMT) 21,477 31
Over five years BiEAF 1,050 —
33,131 2,408
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39. Capital Commitments

39. WHKiE

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#ET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ HREIE ARJE - #23 K M
not provided in the consolidated R B RTAE R ERE BT
financial statements in respect of WMERBEZEARRAY
purchase of gas plant and machinery
and oil vessels 368,803 347,256
Capital expenditure authorised for but ~ ARIUNEEIREEE B E EXK
not contracted and provided in the HEBRETLO M ARRERE B
consolidated financial statements in BB E 2 BRI
respect of acquisition of investment
projects 215,386 202,878

40. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make
a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant
income with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500
per person from June 2014 onward.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

40. Bk FIEHE

AEBMAEERBBZERBAEREER
BRHEATESE - ZFrElzEER
AEBEESHAIFE  AETALES
B - AEERRESERZEM
BEEBRIEEEBBIAZ5%EH
I B2014F6 AR FARKER
D RlAEA1,50087T °

AEERTERBARZEESMNTH
BT EEZRKREMNE - ZZWB A
ARERFERBHAEATERAZ
[ TE LE IR o AN S B AR AR AR A At &
ZME—BEREREEHR -
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41. Related Party Transactions 41. REAEEZS
Other than the related party transactions as set out in B sE2s R2OFTE v BB ALTR G K
notes 25 and 29, saved as disclosed elsewhere in the Y A B FEIR R H i T TR E & 4N 0 A
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into SERFEARNEBFEATETINIRS
the following transactions with related parties during the
year:
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Sales to joint ventures e ETEHE 23,268 14,384
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo [RZ9&E 5 2 F 45
(Note) (Htat) 4,776 4,560
Management charges paid to an H—REEARXNEES
associate = 257
Transportation fee received from an M —REE & A RIIRE 2 E 8 B
associate 424 =
Transportation fee received from a joint Hl—R& L A FUE 2 iE &
venture 17 =
Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the Group and also the K ANEBzEEZETHE D R E/NA
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu 2T o BLHEABRRNBZHITES -
Hung is the executive director of the Company. On 29 2015612 A29H M EEEE =
December 2015, Sound Management entered into an office EEGIN R BEK L 2 ERERA A
tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky Limited (“Ever Lucky”), (Mew )& —HPHAEHEL - LA
a company incorporated in Hong Kong and controlled by 380,000 wH A B ERES
Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office premises owned by Ever MNEBEFELTITE2005FHEER
Lucky located on 23rd Floor, The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 L2312 HFAEYE - AR 2016
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$380,000 per F1A1BARABH—F - R2016F 12
calendar month for a period of one year commencing on 1 R198 ' TEEERERE SN —
January 2016. On 19 December 2016, Sound Management Dt RZERL - LAE A 398,000/ T
and Ever Lucky entered into another office tenancy HeBHEZMAE—FE2017F12 A
agreements to extend the rental period for one year to 31 318 - ZERHZFHBEH#HINAR
December 2017 at HK$398,000 per month. The details of D RIR 201512 A 29 H &% 2016 &
the transactions were set out in the announcements issued 12198 FIBEZAER -

by the Company dated on 29 December 2015 and 19
December 2016 respectively.

I 161
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41.

42.

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

The rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo are subjected
to reporting and announcement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rule, the remaining transactions disclosed in this
note and notes 25 and 29 are connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
but are exempted from reporting, announcement, and
shareholders approval requirements under Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company consider that the directors
are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments
have been disclosed in note 11.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard

to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Major Non-cash Transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2016, amount of
approximately HK$449,378,000 was transferred from
deposits paid to property, plant and equipment.

41.

42,

RMEALRS(E)

SN FEEZBES I B TRE ET R A
FUAAB BB AE A EHED
H 232 5 KRBt 25 & 29 AR A iR E
EHAAE AT ETHRERS @ I
BHRRETEMANET ZHBE - A5
KR BAERRE ©

FRETEARZEM
ARFREERREER/AKEZEEE

BAE  HBie2 M 11 AIRE -

EERTRTBRABZHMAFMES
SRBEAARRRTGBEETE -

FEIREXSH
REE2016F12 A31HILFE - A

449,378,000 B THE NI 2 BEEY
3 MBS NERE o
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43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company

43.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
registration/ Class of share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation’ share held registered capital
Efil/ BRfTRER
HELR&HE it/ g HEROEN k& /ERES
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Offshore  Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000
Limited
BEFRPEREEREERAT R Lk 100,0002M 7
Fruto International Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000
Offshore Limited
BLER R R R R AR AT 1§ Lk 100,000 M7
Lianin Energy Development Company ~ PRC' Registered capital RMB486,500,000
Limited
R RERARAR RE' ER A 486,500,0007C
NewOcean Petroleum Company Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USD1
MERRERAT £BRYS Lk 1%
Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents”) Hong Kong Ordlinary HKS2
(Note)
MERBABRAA(GREREA M) Bk Lk 28T
MR (KB BRAR PRC® Registered capital U3D99,150,000
HEsR (A8 BRAT RE’ Aftax 99,150,000%7
HER(ME)ARAT PRC® Registered capital U3D107,670,000
MR ERAT hE’ iR 107,670,000 %TC
BEFNEER0R8)ERAR PRC’ Registered capital RMB79,182,085
BERITEMR (KB ARAR hE’ iER ARE79,182,0857
NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary Singapore Dollars
4,109,589
NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ~ ¥711% LRk 4,109,589 1T

FLFZERMELFIFE

KA A R20174F 22016412 A 31 H
ZEBWBARFBAOT :

Proportion of nominal
value of issued/
registered capital held

by the Company
FLARARBERT/

EMEFTELA

2017 2016

Principal activities

FERE

100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG, oil and

electronic products
HERAHRLR  HMnRETEm

100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG

HERDHRILE
Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDERILE

100 100 Sales and distribution of ol products

HERA M

100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG and
selling of oil products

HERDHRILRARES M
100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
HERAHRILR
100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDHRILR

79.2 792 Sales and distribution of oil products

HERA WM
60.0 60.0  Sales and distribution of oil products

BERD i

! NEREDLE

Domestic invested enterprise
Wholly-owned foreign enterprises
Sino-foreign equity enterprise

2EIEDRE
FIMEBRE

Mt HBRENEBRSERI L 2GR
REBARARMERE - ZBEEH
BRIEAZB0% ek © FERIE AR

THERAARREERE °

Note: Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by Shum Chun, Lawrence
who is holding 50% interest in Sound Agents. The remaining
interest in Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company.
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43. FLRFZERMWB LTINS (2)

43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

The above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial
information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.

44. Derivative Financial Instruments

PR TFE2MBERAREHARREEE
ﬁo

EMBRRNFRLFAEMEEGE
ERAREREHES

LRI EERRTEFEAREESE
HEEZARANBRR - EFERRT
HEMMBARZERSBNITE -

EEZRA AKEYEEAIFIEHE
@ BXYERMEEME AR ZHBER
BIEERRE -

4. FTEMBIR

Derivatives financial

instruments
TEMBIR
Assets Liabilities
-3 &R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFBT TET
2017 2017
Current M ED
Commodities swaps contracts P miE B E 4 7,745 7,355
Non-deliverable cross currency RA]RZENRZ Y &R =
interest swap contracts HHEELD 6,784 -
Foreign exchange option contracts SNEEHRRE S %Y 483 506
15,012 7,861
2016 2016
Current TED
Commodities swaps contracts HmiEHEY — 1,935
Deliverable forward contracts RERIE 4 45 —
Interest rate swaps contracts F =B HIE 49 — 26

45 1,961
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44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are

summarised as follows:

A. Commodities swaps contracts — net settlement

Notional amount Period
ZREH -] |
2017

Oil products i
USD26,780,250 January 2018

26,780,250 %7 201841 H
LPG #{L®
UsD8,233,000 January 2018 to

February 2018

8,233,000 37T 201841 A=2A
Notional amount Period

zRen i

2016

Oil products i
USD3,008,750 January 2017

3,008,750 % 7T 20171 A

B. Non-deliverable cross currency interest
swap — net settlement

Notional amount Period

4. FTEMBIRE)
MEMBTAZz XSGR AT -
A. BREEeH - EHBE
Prices
HH#%

Sell at price ranging from USD331.75
to USD368.50
¥ 331.75 %L E 368.50 kL2 B EE

Buy/Sell at price ranging from USD388.00
to USD600.00
1 388.00 XL E600.00 X T2 BREA HE

Prices

Lk

Sell at price ranging from USD300.75
to USD301.00 per metric ton
T 5 AWE300.75 F T E 301.00 T 2 B E

B. FAUXIXNKWBFEHRMEH -
HHBH

1)

EReW

2017
USD155,500,000 21 March 2019 to

1 September 2020

20193 A21HE
20209 A1H

155,500,000 37T

HK$ to USD ranging from 7.7677 to 7.8000
Floating rate of 1 month LIBOR to 1 month
HIBOR + 3.56% or fixed rate of 5.07%
BIHETNTF7.7677 £ 7.8000
FERANE1EARRBEBRITRAEZEREZ1EATER
TR B +3.56% 3k [E FE A2 5.07 %
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44.

45.

Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

C. Foreign exchange option — net settlement

Notional amount Period
ZReH HiR
2017

USD11,825,565.80 16 November 2018

11,825,565.80 % 7T 2018411 H16 H

D. Deliverable forward contracts — gross

settlement
Notional amount Period
RN HiR
2016

USD5,027,692.22
5,027,692.22 & T

18 January 2017
201741 H18H

E. Interest rate swaps contracts — net settlement

Notional amount Period
RN HiR
2016

USD5,000,000 18 January 2017

5,000,000 37T 201791 A 18 H

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject
to Offsetting Agreements

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions
that are covered by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with various banks. These derivative
instruments are not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
enters an arrangement with a bank to borrow an amount
of approximately HK$671,414,000 (2016: approximately
HK$710,184,000), which is secured by same amount of
deposits placed at the same bank.

44.

TTEMBIRE)

C. SrixiiiE - RHBH

Exchange rates

EE

USD to RMB at rates ranging from 6.7264
to 6.7564
ETHAREN T 6.7264 £ 6.7564

D. XEEMEY - SHEH

Interest rates

B

HK$/USD7.7455
It/ FIT7.7455

E. FEANMEW - /EPH

Interest rates

E

Floating rate of 1 month LIBOR + 0.10% to
fixed rate of 0.79%

FEFEA B RBERITRAZERZ+0.10% =
& FE A% 0.79%

45.

MERERMEBARZERR

AEEEETRTE B TEEEH
EETEHE 2 F8EHHE(BEE
EHERTETERSHZEDRE 2T
ARG WEMAET ARG MG
MEANEIEEE  ARERERR
METEHEHHTE - ARREL -
EHNEEXFRAZMRRT T HHEE
o - AR EBIR R B AE LA T
MITZEF - WIEBEEERESE - ¥
201712 A31 HIEFER & A7) EHIE
17 % BE#41671,414,0007 75(2016 : 4
710,184,000/ 70) 2 f& R IR A S H
B2 EBFERGER—RIT °
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45. MBERERMBARZIERTH

45. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject

to Offsetting Agreements (Continued) (%)

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master MIEEEZIRIELHE - AT EFBL
netting arrangement and similar arrangements PERFEL R HE

As at 31 December 2017 EE2017F 125 31H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial assets
liabilities set presented
Gross off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
assets position position
RGEMBRL RESHUBRRA
BRRZHME ROEHHEE RPEATHHE
HEHE RUBARSH HERH
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFEIT FET FET
Derivative financial assets T4 B EE 13,939 - 13,939
Net financial assets subject to enforceable master netting FUMBEEE AT RITEFELHERR S
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty 73 2 Bz BE
As at 31 December 2017 #HF2017F12H31H
Related
amounts not
Net set off in the
amounts consolidated
presented statement of
in the financial
consolidated position —
statement of Derivative
financial financial
position instruments Net amount
RBEHREGME
RRAFRIERZ
2yEFENH HEEHE -
KRR ZBEH TTEMBIR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFEIT FET FETT
Counterparty A RS A 1,121 (1,121) -
Counterparty B R577B 6,624 (4,071) 2,553
Counterparty C R5HC 6,194 (507) 5,687
Total At 13,939 (5,699) 8,240
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45. MBERERMBARZIERTH
(%)

45. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject
to Offsetting Agreements (Continued)

MBaBEEETH  AARTEFER
PR Rz BE

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangements

B F2017F12H31H

As at 31 December 2017

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial liabilities

assets set presented

Gross off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
liabilities position position
RGEaMBERRE RESMBERR

BERZIHE ZHhESNEE FRETHHE
AfRiEE RUBEERS ARBE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT FET
Derivative financial liabilities #7481 1& & & 7,861 = 7,861

Net financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting

FUBRBEZARATIFRLHERS

arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty papra LSz
As at 31 December 2017 BF2017FE 12831 H
Related
amounts not
Net set off in the
amounts consolidated
presented statement of
in the financial
consolidated position —
statement of Derivative
financial financial
position instruments Net amount
RBERESHE
RRFRIERZ
2yEFRENH HREHE -
RRERZBEH fTEMBIR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TFEIT FET FETT
Counterparty A RS A 3,283 (1,121) 2,162
Counterparty B R57B 4,071 (4,071) -
Counterparty C RH5HC 507 (507) -
Total =t 7,861 (5,699) 2,162
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45. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject 45. MEEERMEARZIESRE
to Offsetting Agreements (Continued) (&

MBEEZRBERY  AIRTEFER
BE R B BE

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangement

As at 31 December 2016 B 220161231 H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial assets
liabilities set presented
Gross off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
assets position position
REEHBMRR  RESHEIRRL
ERRZHE  RPEHENER KRPETHHG
BERE RUBEEGEHRESR BEFH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FEIT FET
Derivative financial assets ~ $TAB B EE 45 — 45
Net financial assets subject to enforceable master netting R BEEZAIATEFRRERR S
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty paprk LS e
As at 31 December 2016 B ZE20164F 1231 H
Related
amounts not
Net set off in the
amounts consolidated
presented statement of
in the financial
consolidated position —
statement of Derivative
financial financial
position instruments Net amount
REEGE M
TR RIS 2
2 ELERE I HE S -
MRS 2 558 PTEMBTIA R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Counterparty A RS A 45 (26) 19
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45. MERERMBARZIERRH

(%)

45. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject
to Offsetting Agreements (Continued)

MBABEZEERE  AHTEEER

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master

netting arrangement and similar arrangements PE R =2 BE
As at 31 December 2016 HZE2016F 12431 H
Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented
Gross off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
liabilities position position
REEEFBMRR  REEHEIRRL
ERRHME  KPEHENER KRPETHNHG
BERE RUBEELSR BEFHE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FEIT FEIT
Derivative financial liabilities #7481 & (& (26) — (26)

FUBRBZAATEFELHERRS
77 2 BB

Net financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty

As at 31 December 2016 B ZE20164F 12531 H

Related
amounts not

Net set off in the

amounts consolidated

presented statement of

in the financial

consolidated position —

statement of Derivative

financial financial
position instruments Net amount

REEGEME

TR RIS 2

2IEFEEUH HEA S -
R TR 2558 TEMBIA R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET
Counterparty A RS5FA 26 (26) —
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46. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 46. MBI RAZLFEHE
Instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHEENATFEMAEZETEEAM
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on EEERMBABZLATFE

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities RBER BTAEEZHBEER
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting BB EIAATERE - TXRHIA
period. The following table gives information about how the BN ETHENSREERYEEEZ
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities A EGFRZMEA 2 SERN &
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and AZE) URAFEFEZRAFESRE
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy BRI A B 258 A SIS 2 0]
into which the fair value measurements are categorised BREESIB(E—HEE=H) -

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable.

e |evel 1 fair value measurements are those derived o F—HAFEFENEHEREEL
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for BENERT SRR ZEBERCR
identical assets or liabilities; AR FTSH

e  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived o F_HZAVEFENEEEREE
from inputs other than quoted prices included within ZEEENMER) MEEGTEEE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, )RR A SEFTS L - R
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived AFB— R FTRERERIN + &

from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived o FZMAFEFTETN B BELIER
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the BRI B RS8R (EAERE A
asset or liability that are not based on observable BRI ZEEXBBEHASEZE

market data (unobservable inputs). BIRMATEL
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46. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 46. MBI RAZLAFEHHEE)
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHEENATFEMAEZETEEAM

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on BEERMESRZAFE(Z)
a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at

SFE Valuation
techniques
Financial assets/ Fair value and key
financial liabilities 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 hierarchy inputs
fh{EH R
MEEE MBEAR ®2017%12A31H #2016 12A31H ATFEEE IEHAHRE
Commodities swap Assets — HK$7,745,000 Liabilities — Level 3 Quoted from
contracts classified as HK$1,935,000 financial
derivatives financial Liabilities — instruments
instruments in the HK$7,355,000

consolidated statement
of financial position

REre kR EzNERE BE — 7,745,000  AfE — 1,935,000 H£=4& HwEMBITA
PTEBE T A g
HEH Af& — 7,355,000/87C

Non-deliverable cross Assets — HK$6,784,000 N/A Level 3 Quoted from
currency interest financial
contracts classified instruments

as derivative financial
instruments in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
REREMERAR D ER BE — 6,784,000  TEMH FE= HwEMBITA
MTEMBIAZPRAIR
BIRXNEENEER

Foreign exchange option  Assets — HK$483,000 N/A Level 3 Quoted from
contracts classified financial
as derivative financial Liabilities — HK$506,000 instruments

instruments in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
REREMERRAR DR BE — 483,000/87T NiE A F= HwEMBITA
PTER BT A Z RN
bEEARE A 4 Bf& — 506,000/7T
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46. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 46. MBI RAZLAFEHHEE)
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHEENATFEMAEZETEEAM

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on BEERMESRZAFE(Z)
a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at

SFE Valuation
techniques
Financial assets/ Fair value and key
financial liabilities 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 hierarchy inputs
fh{EH R
MEEE MBEAR ®2017%12A31H #2016 12A31H ATFEEE IEHAHRE
Interest rate swaps N/A Liabilities — HK$26,000 Level 3 Quoted from
contracts classified financial
as derivative financial instruments

instruments in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

iR MR R R TER A& — 26,0005 FE= WEMETA
PTEMBTAZ xR
HI&H

Deliverable forward N/A Assets — HK$45,000 Level 3 Quoted from
contracts classified as financial
derivatives financial instruments

instruments in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

WiREM KRz ER TER BE — 45,000/87C E=M WEMETA
PTEFHETAZRER
HE4
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RABEBRBRERE P HRE P ER
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at 2B EERYBAERAEERL QT
amortised cost recognised in the consolidated financial BEiEH -

statements approximate their fair values.
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47. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 47. FRTFIZHBRRLE
Information about the statement of the financial positon RMEAREEERR R ZHBARRAK 2
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI ¢
follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Non-current assets EMENE E
Investment in a subsidiary REMBRA - —
Deposits paid BEfEE 441,252 331,525
441,252 331,525
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) — FEUHT B A 7 2 2B (K1:7) 5,167,439 4,566,168
Other debtors, deposits and HEMEKERER Ze Rk
prepayment TEfFFIA 21,302 44,283
Bank balances and cash IRTT#EER NIR e 3,568 2,570
Derivative financial instruments PTEBGIFT A 2,194 =
5,194,503 4,613,021
Current liabilities mEBE
Other creditors and accrued charges E R BT E A 9,668 9,558
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMKIA 3,283 1,935
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERTB B A 7] 2 278 1,057,709 662,620
Amount due to a joint venture B —REEDEZHIE 3,096 2,916
Borrowings — repayable within one BR — AR —FARE
year 1,191,756 313,145
2,265,512 990,174
Net current assets mEN B EFE 2,928,991 3,622,847
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEGE 3,370,243 3,954,372
Capital and reserves B K fH
Share capital N 147,303 148,040
Reserves fEE 1,870,650 1,684,337
Total equity BiE L 2,017,953 1,832,377
Non-current liabilities B AE
Borrowings — repayable over one year ik — BN —FRER 1,352,290 2,121,995
3,370,243 3,954,372
Note: The balances are presented as current assets as the Wit B RAGEEEBERI20EH A K
directors of the Company expected to be recovered within [5] + Bt Er 2 5l B B B E o

twelve months.
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47. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 47. FLRRZHMBERAER(E)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: RARREE2ES :

Contribution Capital
Share Share Exchange surplus  redemption Retained

capital premium reserve accounts reserve profits

k* EHER Efkl  BARBE EIROGHE REEN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL TEL AL AL AL

At 1 January 2016 R2016%1A1H 148,040 1,439,717 (68,474) 1,667 - 296,300 1,827,250
Profit for the year FRER = = = = = 163,032 153,082
Bxchange difference arising A E AR EH

on translation to EXERZES

presentation currency - - (110,89) - - - (110,895)

Total comprehensive ERZE(ZL)

(expense) income for et

the year - - (108%) - - 163,032 2137
Dividend paid BERRE - - - - - (37,010) (37,010)
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12 A31 B 148,040 1,439,717 (169,369) 1,667 - 412,322 1,832,377
Profit for the year FREN - - - - - 54,407 54,407
Exchange difference arising IR 128 718 §#

on translation to EENZR

presentation currency - - 148,598 - - - 148,598

Total comprehensive income  £E )2 T W25 4248

for the year - - 148,598 - - 54,407 203,005
Repurchase of ordinary BB @R (D
shares 737 (16,692) - - 737 737 (17.429)

At 31 December 2017 2017 E12 431 B 147,303 1423025 (20,771) 1,667 7

w

7 465,992 2,017,963
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M5 E

RESULTS E 3|

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A3 HILEE
2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue N 14,433,446 19,633,037  15514,990 15,700,406 22,058,618
Profit before taxation BRI A 812,225 922,218 795,755 829,341 852,466
Taxation charge MIESL (29,378) (21,312) (36,783) (79,181) (27,663)
Profit for the year FRER 782,847 900,906 758,972 750,160 824,803
Attributable to: FEfh:
Owners of the Company ZINETE 2N 783,308 900,270 756,643 749,397 835,631
Non-controlling interests JEE e (461) 636 2,329 763 (10,828)
782,847 900,906 758,972 750,160 824,803
Earnings per share B2
Basic (in HK dollars) HA(BTT) 0.55 0.61 0.51 0.51 0.57
Diluted (in HK dollars) #E(BT) 0.54 0.60 0.51 N/A N/A
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

At 31 December

®12A31H

2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 13,291,766 14,246,116 11,404,965 12,544,128 14,337,092
Total liabilities BaE (9,174969)  (9,340,332)  (6,016,349)  (6,603,183)  (7,352,544)
4,116,797 4,905,784 5,388,616 5,940,945 6,984,548

Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA R 2 H A AL

the Company R 4,095,536 4,874,600 5,350,423 5,857,227 6,915,350
Non-controlling interests el 21,261 31,184 38,193 83,718 69,198
4,116,797 4,905,784 5,388,616 5,940,945 6,984,548
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